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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to
invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded
on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the
contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Prime Intelligence Solutions Group Limited (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars give in compliance with the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no
other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement

EE®RE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Prime Intelligence
Solutions Group Limited (the “Company”), | hereby present the annual
report of the Company and its subsidiaries (together, the "Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2020.

LISTING

On 14 February 2018, the Company was successfully listed (the “Listing”)
on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The Listing has laid a foundation for the Group’s continuous
development.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a provider of biometrics identification solutions in Hong
Kong (“Hong Kong”) Special Administrative Region of the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”), Macau Special Administrative Region of the
PRC (“Macau”) and the PRC. The Group markets itself using the brand
“Solution Expert”. The Group markets its products through the sales of
products which include biometrics identification devices and other devices
and accessories, and provision of auxiliary and other services. The
Group’s biometrics identification devices have one or more of the
following functions: face identification; fingerprint identification; finger vein
identification; hand geometry identification; and iris identification.

The Group would like to share more details of its performance, financial
position and other information for the year ended 31 March 2020 with
shareholders (“Shareholders”) in the following section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis”.

PROSPECTS

Apart from its commitment to the development of its principal business,
the Group will actively make progress to generate growth and strive for
potential and new business opportunities. The Group plans to further its
growth in existing business by strengthening its marketing capabilities and
expanding its product portfolio through enhancing software development,
with a view to further enlarging its market share in Hong Kong and Macau
and becoming one of the active biometrics identification solutions
providers in the PRC. As such, the Group plans to utilise the net proceeds
from the Listing by way of share offer on (i) expanding the business in the
Southern Ching; (i) improving its information technology system; and (iii)
setting up a new and separate software development centre in the PRC
to further enhance and develop the Group’s software.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERFHRE

With the social events in the past few months and the latest spread of
coronavirus epidemic in Hong Kong, the Group plans to diversify its
business to maintain a healthy portfolio. Leveraging on the experience of
the directors of the Company (the “Directors”), the Group consider
setting up new business lines including artificial intelligence technology
solutions, catering management and trade services.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group remains committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. All board committees have effectively supported the Board
in carrying out its responsibilities. By conducting its business under good
corporate governance, the Group’s and shareholder’s long term interests
will be maximised.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my warmest thanks to the
management and our staff for their significant contributions. | would like to
extend my sincere gratitude to all our Shareholders and investors for their
endless support. With the solid business base and the effort of all staff,
the Group will endeavour to open a new chapter in the future.

Yuen Kwok Wai, Tony
Chairman
Hong Kong, 22 June 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

OVERVIEW

The Group is a provider of biometrics identification solutions in Hong
Kong, Macau and the PRC. The Group derives revenue from the following
business activities: (i) sales of products which include biometrics
identification devices, and other devices and accessories; and (i) provision
of auxiliary and other services. The Group’s biometrics identification
devices have one or more of the following functions: (i) face identification;
(i) fingerprint identification; (iii) finger vein identification; (iv) hand geometry
identification; and (v) iris identification. The revenue of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2020 was approximately HK$50.8 million,
representing a slight decrease of approximately 0.2% from approximately
HK$50.9 million for the year ended 31 March 2019. The decrease in
revenue was mainly attributable to the net effect of () decrease in sales of
biometrics identification devices and other accessories by approximately
HK$1.3 million, or 3.8% as compared with the corresponding period in
2019; and (i) increase in revenue derived from provision of auxiliary and
other service by approximately HK$1.3 million, or 7.9% as compared with
the corresponding period in 2019.

Revenue represents the invoiced values of goods sold and services
rendered, after allowances for returns and discounts during the reporting
periods.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Cost of Sales and Services Rendered and Gross Profit

The majority of the Group’s cost of sales and services rendered was cost
of inventories sold. The Group’s cost of inventories sold decreased by
approximately 6.2% to approximately HK$16.7 million for the year ended
31 March 2020 (2019: approximately HK$17.8 million). The gross profit
margin dropped from approximately 50.8% for the year ended 31 March
2019 to approximately 48.4% for the year ended 31 March 2020. The
gross profit also dropped from approximately HK$25.8 million for the year
ended 31 March 2019 to approximately HK$24.6 million for the year
ended 31 March 2020. The decrease of gross profit margin and gross
profit was mainly due to the increase in direct cost incurred by the
operation of the new software development centre in the PRC.

Expenses

Staff cost for the year ended 31 March 2020 was approximately HK$24.6
million (2019: approximately HK$22.9 million), representing an increase of
approximately HK$1.7 million as compared with the last year, which was
mainly due to the salary increment during the period.

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 March 2020 were
approximately HK$23.1 million (2019: approximately HK$22.0 million),
representing an increase of approximately HK$1.1 million as compared
with the last corresponding period, which was mainly due to the increase
in staff cost.

Taxes

The income tax expense comprised Hong Kong Profits Tax, Macau
Complementary Tax and PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the year. The
income tax expense for the year ended 31 March 2020 was
approximately HK$0.4 million (2019: approximately HK$0.3 million).

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The Inland
Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”) which introduces the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28
March 2018 and was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying
group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be
taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of
16.5%.

Following the Bill becoming effective, one of the subsidiaries of the
Company is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax at the rate of 8.25% (2019:
8.25%) for the first HK$2 million of its estimated assessable profits and at
16.5% (2019: 16.5%) on its estimated assessable profits above HK$2
million. Other subsidiaries of the Company are subjected to Hong Kong
Profits Tax at the rate of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) for the year ended 31
March 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERBNWR DM

The Group’s subsidiary established and operated in the PRC is subject to
PRC Enterprise Income Tax at the rate of 25.0% (2019: 25.0%). No PRC
Enterprise Income Tax has been provided as the Group’s PRC subsidiary
did not generate any assessable profits during the years ended 31 March
2020 and 2019.

The Group’s subsidiary established and operated in Macau is subject to
Macau Complementary Tax, under which taxable income of up to
MOP600,000 (2019: MOP600,000) is exempted from taxation with
taxable income beyond this amount to be taxed at the rate of 12% (2019:
12%) for the year ended 31 March 2020 and 2019.

Loss for the Year

The Group incurred a net loss of approximately HK$3.4 million for the
year ended 31 March 2020, as compared with a net loss of approximately
HK$1.5 million for the year ended 31 March 2019. The increase in net
loss was mainly due to (i) the cost involved in the setting up of a new and
separate software development centre in the PRC to further enhance and
develop the Group’s software; (i) an increase in administrative expenses
mainly from the increase in staff cost; and (i) the measures implemented
by the governments of the PRC and Macau including locking down to
control the rapid spread and reduce the scale of the infection of the novel
coronavirus disease (COVID-19), which have impacted the usual business
activities of the areas and disrupted the daily operations of the Group.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

Historically, the Group has funded the liquidity and capital requirements
primarily through operating cash flows, bank borrowings and proceeds
from Listing. The Directors believe that with the new capital from Listing,
the Group is in a healthy financial position to expand its core business
and to achieve its business objectives. As at 31 March 2020, the Group
had no bank borrowings (31 March 2019: Nil). The Group requires cash
primarily for working capital needs. As at 31 March 2020, the Group had
approximately HK$65.1 million in bank and cash balances (31 March
2019: approximately HK$70.3 million).

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, the Group has no outstanding
borrowings and thus no gearing ratio.

Note: Gearing ratio is calculated as the total debt divided by total equity.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

OPERATION REVIEW

Outlook

The ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each (the “Shares”) of the Company
have been successfully listed on GEM on 14 February 2018. The Board
considers that such public listing status will allow the Company to gain
access to the capital market for corporate finance exercise, assist the
Company in the future business development, enhance the Group’s
corporate profile and recognition and strengthen its competitiveness.

Looking forward, the Group plans to generate further growth in existing
business by strengthening its marketing capabilities and expanding its
product portfolio through enhancing software development, with a view to
further enlarging its market share in Hong Kong and Macau and
becoming one of the active biometrics identification solutions providers in
the PRC. As such, the Group plans to utilise the net proceeds from Listing
on (i) launching affordable locally manufactured fingerprint identification
devices as part of the expansion plan of the business in the Southern
Ching; (i) enhancing the quality of after-sale services and strengthening
the operation support as part of the expansion plan of the business in the
Southern China; (iil) improving its information technology system; and (iv)
setting up a new and separate software development centre in the PRC
to further enhance and develop the Group’s software.

With the social events in the past few months and the latest spread of
COVID-19 epidemic in Hong Kong, the Group plans to diversify its
business to maintain a healthy portfolio. Leveraging on the experience of
the Directors, the Group considers setting up new business lines including
artificial intelligence technology solutions, catering management and trade
services.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERBNWR DM

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had a total of 70 employees. The
Group’s staff cost for the year ended 31 March 2020 amounted to
approximately HK$24.6 million (2019: approximately HK$22.9 million).
The Group’s remuneration policies are in line with the prevailing market
practise and are determined on the basis of performance, qualification
and experience of individual employee. The Group recognises the
importance of a good relationship with its employees. The remuneration
payable to its employees includes salaries and allowances. Other benefits
and incentives include training and share option.

In Hong Kong, the Group’s employees have participated in the mandatory
provident fund prescribed by the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong). In the PRC, the
Group’s employees have participated in the basic pension insurance,
basic medical insurance, unemployment insurance, occupational injury
insurance, maternity insurance prescribed by the Social Insurance Law of
the PRC ({FFZE AR KRB REE)), and housing fund prescribed
by the Regulations on the Administration of Housing Fund ({{F E A& &
EIREM))). All PRC based employees have the right to participate in the
social insurance and housing provident fund schemes.

Capital Expenditure

The Group purchased property, plant and equipment amounting to
approximately HK$0.1 million for the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019:
approximately HK$1.7 million).

Capital Commitments
The Group did not have any significant capital commitments as at 31
March 2020 (2019: Nil).

Foreign Currency Risk
The Company does not have significant exposure on foreign currency
risk.

The functional currency of the Group’s entities are principally denominated
in HK$, Renminbi (‘RMB”) and Macau Pataca (“MOP”). The Group has
certain exposure to foreign currency risk as some of its business
transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currencies of respective Group entities such as United
Stated dollars (“US$”), RMB and EURO. The Group currently does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities.
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The Group did not engage in any derivatives agreement and did not
commit to any financial instruments to hedge its foreign exchange
exposure during the year ended 31 March 2020.

Significant Investments held, Material Acquisitions and Disposals
of Subsidiaries, and Future Plans for Material Investments or
Capital Assets

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group did not have any
significant investment, material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries or
any plan for material investments or capital assets.

Charges over Assets of the Group
As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, there were no charges over assets of the
Group.

Dividend
The Directors do not recommend payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2020.

Share Option Scheme

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed by the then Shareholders on 18 January
2018 for the primary purpose is to attract, retain and motivate talented
participants, to strive for future developments and expansion of the
Group. Eligible participants of the Scheme include any employees, any
executives Directors, non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors), advisers, consultants of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.

The Scheme will remain valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on the date on which the Scheme is adopted, after which
no further share options will be granted but the provisions of the Scheme
shall in all other respects remain in full force and effect and share options
which are granted during the life of the Scheme may continue to be
exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue. The principal terms of
the Scheme were summarised in the paragraph headed “Share Option
Scheme” in Appendix IV to the prospectus (the “Prospectus”) published
by the Company in relation to the Listing. No share option has been
granted, exercised, expired, cancelled or lapsed under the Scheme since
its adoption.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

Use of Proceeds and Actual Progress of the Group’s Business

Objectives

The net proceeds from the Listing (after deducting the underwriting fees
and other related expenses paid by the Company in connection with the
share offer) which amounted to approximately HK$44.5 million will be
used for the intended purposes as set out in the section headed

Fir

+

“Statement of Business Objectives and Strategies” of the Prospectus. Set
out below is the actual usage of net proceeds up to the date of this

==

1T

A

HARRAEEXY B RNERER

BHREFENREHERARARROEES

NEEMARR R 2) R4 5B EET - AERK
ERIEHERRKRE] —HREBRERR - UTHAH
REEARREBR AR

BREFENERAE

report:
Net
proceeds Utilised Unutilised
PRSI R 25A i R B A
HKS$ milion  HK$ million  HK$ million
BEET A8AT BEET
Expanding the business in the HREREEER
Southern China
— launch of affordable locally manufactured — — #i H ZN b B4 7] & HE 4540
fingerprint identification devices HREE 15.8 - 15.8
— enhancement of the quality of after-sales — I2&EZIREHE E &N
services and strengthening of BEYE
the operation support 5.1 (8.1) 2.0
Improving the information BEEMBE RS
technology system 5.0 (8.3) 1.7
Setting up a new and separate software A B3Rk 3 — B #7918 L B4 BE 3%
development centre in the PRC to PLUE—SRARFEEAEER
further enhance and develop Y ER44
the Group’s software 15.2 (3.8) 1.4
Working capital HEES 3.4 (3.4) -
445 (13.6) 30.9
2R i h R MARAR / FH#2020 13
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Group’s business objectives are to
further its growth in existing business by strengthening marketing
capabilities and expanding product portfolio through enhancing software
development, in order to further enlarge its market share in Hong Kong
and Macau and to become one of the active biometrics identification
solutions providers in the PRC. The Directors intend to achieve the
objectives by (i) launching affordable locally manufactured fingerprint
identification devices as part of the expansion plan of the business in the
Southern China; (ii) enhancing the quality of aftersales services and
strengthening the operation support as part of the expansion plan of the
business in the Southern China; (i) improving the information technology
system; and (iv) setting up a new and separate software development
centre in the PRC to further enhance and develop the Group’s software.

The Group had planned to use approximately HK$15.8 million of net
proceeds to launch affordable locally manufactured fingerprint
identification devices as part of the expansion plan of the business in the
Southern China. The Group has not yet launched affordable locally
manufactured fingerprint identification devices. The Group is reviewing the
needs and timeframe for launch of affordable locally manufactured
fingerprint identification devices so as to capture the above-mentioned
low-end market in the PRC.

The Group had planned to use approximately HK$5.1 million of net
proceeds to enhance the quality of aftersales services and to strengthen
the operation support as part of the expansion plan of the business in the
Southern China. As at 31 March 2020, a total of approximately HK$3.1
million was spent on enhancing the quality of aftersales services and
strengthening the operation support as part of the expansion plan of the
business in the Southern China.

The Group had planned to use approximately HK$5.0 million of net
proceeds to improve the information technology system. As at 31 March
2020, a total of approximately HK$3.3 million was spent on improving the
information technology system.

The Group had planned to use approximately HK$15.2 million of net
proceeds to set up a new and separate software development centre in
the PRC to further enhance and develop the Group’s software. As at 31
March 2020, a total of approximately HK$3.8 million was spent on setting
up a new and separate software development centre in the PRC to further
enhance and develop the Group’s software.

The Group had planned to use approximately HK$3.4 million of net

proceeds to working capital. As at 31 March 2020, a total of
approximately HK$3.4 million was spent on working capital.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENGREEERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuen Kwok Wai, Tony, aged 49, is one of the founders of the
Group, the chairman of the Board, an executive Director, the chief
executive officer of the Group and one of the controlling shareholders (the
“Controlling Shareholders”) of the Company. He joined the Group as a
director on 28 June 1999 and was re-designated as an executive Director
on 6 November 2015. He is responsible for major decision-making,
overall strategic planning and day-to-day business management. Mr.
Tony Yuen is a director of Power Truth Holdings Limited (“Power Truth”),
Solution Expert Technology Limited (“SE Technology”), Solution Expert
Engineering Limited (“SE Engineering”), Solution Expert Technology
(R&D) Limited (“SE R&D”), and Solution Expert Technology (Macau)
Limited (“SE Macau”). He is also the chairman, general manager and
legal representative of Solution Expert Technology (Shenzhen) Limited*
(“SE Shenzhen”). In addition, he is a director of Delighting View Global
Limited (“Delighting View”) holding 85% shareholdings of the company.

Mr. Tony Yuen has over 22 years of experience in software programming.
He obtained a bachelor of engineering degree from the University of Hong
Kong in January 1995. Before he joined the Group, he was the head of
information systems department of PENTAX group in Hong Kong from
1996 to 1998, and was responsible for developing networking and
computer solution systems in different computerisation projects. Mr. Tony
Yuen has not held any directorship in any other public companies, the
securities of which are or have been listed on any securities market in
Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.

Mr. Tony Yuen is the brother of Ms. Pauline Yuen (one of the executive
Directors and Controlling Shareholders), the spouse of Ms. Jazzy Wong (a
member of the senior management) and the brother-in-law of Mr. Joseph
Yam (the non-executive Director).

EL BRI EEBRAT / 352020

HITES

FEfREE 495 AARBEEHBRAZ— EFEE
& PITESHRAEBEITHRAE IR AERARE ([
BIRER]) 2 — o R 1999F 6 A28 HINAARNEER AE
£ WHN2015F11 A6AERATANTES - HBEE
BREK BERHEMAZIREFEBEE mMEELE
BERBIERERAR(HBE]D) - EARBAERAR(E
MR HRIRERAR(ERIR]  HHREE
MrERARAR ((ERMAED REARKCRPM) AR
AR ([ERBRMEDHES - BAAFARECRID R
REl([EREIN DO EE - BEBROEERTRA o BN -
1% /& Delighting View Global Limited ([ Delighting View |)
BESR RFFHE85% RiE -

EEEEERHFRENTAESA2FELEH - FR
1995 F 1 AR BB AN TIRBE 247 - RIIAKE
ERT - XA 1996 F = 1998 F A B BEES T EEMNE
AERBEE - BENTRERCIE B FEESE LB
R RRG - MEAEEERBE-FWERESFE A
FELERANFIMAEST S LA REMEAR
DNERTERESRS -

R EERER XL (MITERRIERBERZ —) K
BB TRERE (GREREKE) NREBREBAE
£ GFHITES) RN -

15



)

0

oo o N o B0 JOPT NQOTOLLUUROD ] O, [ VDU

Biographies of Directors and Senior Management
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Ms. Yuen Mei Ling, Pauline, aged 51, is an executive Director and one
of the Controlling Shareholders. She was re-designated as an executive
Director on 6 November 2015 and is mainly responsible for overseeing
corporate policies and human resources of the Group. She is a director of
Power Truth, SE Technology, SE Engineering, SE R&D, SE Shenzhen and
SE Macau. In addition, she is also a director of Delighting View holding
15% shareholdings of the company.

Ms. Pauline Yuen has over 28 years of experience in accounting, during
which she has also obtained over 11 years of experience in finance and
management. She obtained a bachelor of science degree in business
administration and accounting from the California State University in the
United States in August 1992. She worked in Wing On Department Stores
(Hong Kong) Limited from November 1992 to April 1994, with her last
position being assistant accountant. She then worked in China Online
(Bermuda) Limited, from April 1994 to September 1999, with her last
position being senior accountant. She was the accounting manager of
Tricom CyberWorld Holdings Limited from September 1999 to December
2000. From September 2001 to January 2006, she worked in Hing Wah
Lung Oil & Rice Limited with her last positing being the accounting and
administration manager. She was employed by Pacific Century Matrix (HK)
Limited from February 2006 to May 2007 with her last position being
manager, finance and administration and was mainly responsible for
management of treasury function and finance and accounting operations.

Ms. Pauline Yuen joined the Group in May 2007 as manager in finance
and administration department and was subsequently transferred to
senior manager in human resources and administration in May 2015. She
was responsible for overseeing human resources activities.

Ms. Pauline Yuen is the sister of Mr. Tony Yuen (one of the executive
Directors and Controlling Shareholders) and the sister-in-law of Mr.
Joseph Yam (the non-executive Director) and Ms. Jazzy Wong (a member
of the senior management).
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EENGREEERE

Ms. Sun Ngai Chu, Danielle, aged 57, was appointed as an executive
Director on 6 November 2015. Ms. Sun is mainly responsible for
overseeing the sales and marketing functions of the Group. She is also a
director of Power Truth.

Ms. Danielle Sun has over 10 years of treasury experience in catering
industry. From August 2000 to June 2007 (the date of deregistration), she
was a director of Boss Development Limited, a company engaged in
catering business, and was responsible for cash and transaction
management. From May 2004 to December 2015 (the date of
deregistration), Ms. Danielle Sun was the director of Hung Kee Enterprise
Limited and was responsible for managing its property portfolio and
assisting the board in making property investment decisions. She has
also been the treasurer of Wonderland Palace Restaurant on part time
basis since August 2011 and has been responsible for cash and
transaction management. From April 2004 to January 2011, Ms. Danielle
Sun was employed as the treasurer of Zi Xing Xuan (£ £ #f), a Chinese
restaurant, and was responsible for cash and transaction management.

Since joining the Group, Ms. Danielle Sun has been in charge of the
overall sales and marketing of the Group by leading the sales department
to formulate and execute the Group’s sales and marketing strategies. She
is also personally responsible for the sales to the catering sector.

Mr. Mui Pak Kuen, aged 58, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 18 January 2018 and re-designated as an executive
Director on 2 March 2020. Mr. Mui is mainly responsible for providing
market and industry knowledge in assisting strategic planning of the
Group.

Mr. Mui has over 30 years of experience in information technology and
telecommunication industry. He first joined COL Limited as an analyst
programmer from July 1986 to January 1990. From February 1990 to
June 1992, Mr. Mui worked as a consultant in Logica Limited.
Subsequently, he served as a senior consultant in Hutchison Paging
Limited from October 1992 to March 1994 and was mainly responsible
for liaising with business partners in application specification. He then
worked in Hutchison Telecommunications (Hong Kong) Limited from April
1994 to October 1997 as the information technology manager for the
fixed network operation and was mainly responsible for leading the fixed
network IT project team for product evaluation, development and
implementation. Mr. Mui was then employed by PricewaterhouseCoopers
from August 1998 to December 1999 as a supervising consultant. He
later worked as the assistant vice-president in business development in
PCCW Limited from January 2000 to July 2011. From July 2011 to
January 2017, Mr. Mui was the head of Greater China business
development in Tiaxa International Company Limited.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENGREEERE

Mr. Mui obtained a diploma in business computer studies from the
Faculty of Business in Lingnan College Hong Kong in November 1986.
He subsequently obtained a master of economics degree in business
administration from Zhongshan University in the PRC in January 1998 and
further obtained a bachelor of computing degree from the University of
South Australia in September 2004.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Yam Chiu Fan, Joseph, aged 65, was appointed as an executive
Director on 6 November 2015 and was re-designated as a non-executive
Director on 1 April 2017. He is mainly responsible for providing market
and industry knowledge in assisting strategic planning of the Group.

Mr. Joseph Yam dedicated his career to the Hong Kong Police Force for
over 33 years. He began as a probationary inspector in 1977, and was
subsequently promoted to senior inspector in 1987 and to chief inspector
in 1990. In 2004, he was further promoted to superintendent, the rank he
held until his retirement in December 2009. Mr. Joseph Yam was
employed by Hong Yip Service Company Ltd., a subsidiary of Sun Hung
Kai Properties Ltd., as head of security and was responsible for the
overall management, business development, profitability and operations
of its security department, since June 2010. From November 2016 to
May 2020, Mr. Joseph Yam has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of Kingland Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as
Sing on Holdings Limited) (a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 1751), a company providing concrete
demolition services in Hong Kong and Macau.

Mr. Joseph Yam is the brother-in-law of Mr. Tony Yuen (one of the
executive Directors and Controlling Shareholders), Ms. Jazzy Wong (a
member of the senior management) and Ms. Pauline Yuen (one of the
executive Directors and Controlling Shareholders).
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chung Billy, aged 45, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 18 January 2018. He is responsible for overseeing
the management independently and providing independent judgement on
the issues of strategy, performance, resources and standard of conduct
of the Group.

Mr. Chung obtained a bachelor of arts degree in chartered accountancy
studies from The University of Waterloo, Canada in June 1999. He further
obtained a master of business administration degree from the University
of Toronto, Canada in June 2004. Mr. Chung also obtained a diploma in
investigative and forensic accounting from the University of Toronto
Mississauga in 2013 and completed a business analytics certificate
programme, which is an online distance learning course, from the
Northwestern University, the United States, in August 2016.

Mr. Chung has over 10 years of management experience. Mr. Chung
worked as an assistant manager in H.C. Watt & Company Limited in
Hong Kong from August 2005 to July 2006 and was mainly responsible
for assisting in the initial public offering auditing. In June 2007, Mr. Chung
was appointed as an independent non-executive director of Culturecom
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 0343), and was subsequently redesignated as an
executive director in November 2007. He resigned from Culturecom
Holdings Limited in September 2016. From August 2013 to January
2017, Mr. Chung was the senior adviser of WTM Company Limited, a
software development company in Hong Kong, and was responsible for
advising on business strategies and development. Since November 2016,
Mr. Chung has been the general manager of GoAnimate Hong Kong
Limited and is responsible for its business development activities in the
Asia-Pacific region.

Mr. Chung was admitted as an accredited chartered accountant under
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario, Canada in November
2001 and re-designated as a chartered professional accountant in
November 2012. He was also admitted as a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in June 2010. Mr. Chung
was further granted as the certified fraud examiner by the Association of
Certified Fraud Examiners, the United States, in May 2016. He was also
certified by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
United States, to be certified in financial forensics (CFF) in August 2016.
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Mr. Hui Man Ho, Ivan, aged 41, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 18 January 2018. He is responsible for overseeing
the management independently and providing independent judgement on
the issues of strategy, performance, resources and standard of conduct
of the Group.

Mr. Hui obtained a bachelor of business degree in banking and finance
from Monash University, Australia in April 2003 and further obtained two
master’s degrees in applied finance and practising accounting from
Monash University, Australia in November 2004 and November 2007
respectively. He was admitted as a member of CPA Australia in July
2009.

Mr. Hui has over 14 years of experience in corporate finance, financial
management and accounting. He worked in audit field for over five years.
He joined Grant Thornton, an international audit firm, from November
2006 to May 2010 and was responsible for professional engagements
including but not limited to annual audits, interim reviews, initial public
offerings and very substantial acquisition transactions. From July 2010 to
December 2013, he joined a corporate consultancy company as a
consultant to provide professional services including but not limited to
preparing statutory documents and ensuring the documents comply with
the HKFRSs. Mr. Hui was employed by Zhongda International Holdings
Limited as an assistant financial controller from July 2010 to July 2017
and was mainly responsible for preparing group consolidation financial
statements, announcements and circulars and also participating in
financial matters of various projects. The listing of shares of Zhongda
International Holdings Limited on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
was cancelled on 8 March 2019. Mr. Hui has been an independent non-
executive director of Upbest Group Limited (a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 0335), a company principally
engaged in provision of financial services, since July 2012. From August
2017 to January 2019, Mr. Hui was employed as the company secretary
of Cocoon Holdings Limited (formerly known as Huge China Holdings
Limited) (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 0428). From March 2018 to June 2018, Mr. Hui was a non-
executive director of Cocoon Holdings Limited. Mr. Hui has been an
independent non-executive director of Elegance Optical International
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 0907), since March 2020.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENEAREEERE

Mr. Poon Wai Hung Richard, aged 55, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 2 March 2020. He is responsible
for overseeing the management independently and providing independent
judgement on the issues of strategy, performance, resources and
standard of conduct of the Group.

Mr. Poon has over 26 years of experience in the accounting, auditing,
internal auditing and corporate finance in Hong Kong and the PRC. Since
March 2001, he has been the sole practitioner of Richard Poon & Co.,
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Poon has also been serving as the
managing director of Richard Poon & Partners (C.P.A.) Limited since
August 2013.

Mr. Poon was conferred his Master of Business Administration from the
University of South Australia in April 1999. He is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants as well as a practising
certified public accountant and a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Wong Ka Man, Jazzy, aged 41, is the senior manager of SE
Engineering and is responsible for assisting Ms. Danielle Sun in
conducting the Group’s sales and marketing. She is also a director of SE
Shenzhen. Ms. Jazzy Wong obtained a bachelor of arts degree in
computing from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November
2004. Prior to joining the Group, she worked at South China Media
Limited as web developer in the online department from July 2000 to
September 2000. She joined SE Engineering in October 2000.

Ms. Jazzy Wong is the spouse of Mr. Tony Yuen (one of the executive
Directors and Controlling Shareholders), and the sister-in-law of Ms.
Pauline Yuen (one of the executive Directors and Controlling
Shareholders) and Mr. Joseph Yam (the non-executive Director).
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENGREEERE

Mr. Chou Chiu Ho, aged 38, is the company secretary and financial
controller of the Group, and is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting, financial planning, financial control and company
secretarial matters. He first joined as the company secretary of SE
Technology in September 2015 and was subsequently promoted as the
company secretary and financial controller in November 2016. He was
appointed as the company secretary of the Company in November 2015.

Mr. Chou has over 10 years of experience in accounting and auditing.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chou worked in an accounting firm from
September 2003 to January 2006, with his last position being semi-senior
auditor. He then joined PricewaterhouseCoopers from January 2006 to
December 2010. From January 2011 to March 2012, Mr. Chou worked
as the head of corporate services of Beijing Sports and Entertainment
Industry Group Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 1803) (formerly known as ASR Logistics Holdings
Limited). Since April 2013, Mr. Chou has been working as the financial
controller and company secretary of Millennium Pacific Group Holdings
Limited (a company listed on GEM, stock code: 8147) (“MP Group”). Mr.
Chou resigned as the financial controller and the company secretary of
MP Group in September 2014 and March 2017 respectively. Mr. Chou
also served as the chief financial officer of HF Financial Group Limited and
subsequently transferred to HF Management (China) Limited from January
2015 to July 2016. Since September 2017, Mr. Chou has been the
director of Archon Prime Strategic Investment (Group) Limited. Mr. Chou
has been an executive director and the authorised representative of
Xinming China Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 2699) on 5 February 2020 and re-
designated as a non-executive director on 1 May 2020.

Mr. Chou obtained a bachelor of arts degree in accountancy from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 2003. Mr. Chou was
admitted as a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountant in November 2011. He was also admitted as a member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in November 2010
and subsequently a fellow member in November 2015.
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BACKGROUND

The Company was incorporated and registered as an exempt
company in the Cayman Islands with limited liability under the
Companies Law (as revised) of the Cayman Islands on 16 October
2015.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in sales of biometrics identification devices and
security products and provision of application software and repair
and maintenance services during the year ended 31 March 2020
which is same as those of last year. The Company is listed on GEM
of Stock Exchange on 14 February 2018 (stock code: 8379).

This Review covers the Group’s overall performance in two subject
areas, namely, environmental and social aspects of the business
operations in Hong Kong office for the period from 1 April 2019 to
31 March 2020 (the “year” or “2020”), unless otherwise stated.

FOREWORD

The Group primarily adopts the principles and basis of the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (“ESG
Guide”) as set out in Appendix 20 to the GEM Listing Rules, with
an aim to establish a sound environmental, social and governance
structure.

This report comprises the review of environmental, social and
governance (“ESG”) areas, which sets out the Company and its
major subsidiaries’ policies and practises in respect of three
environmental aspects and eight social aspects in accordance with
ESG Guide for the year. This report is designed to allow the
Company’s stakeholders, such as Shareholders, investors,
customers, suppliers, employees, creditors, regulators and the
general public to have comprehensive understanding of the long-
term sustainability information of the Group. The Group seeks to
balance the views and interests of these stakeholders through
constructive conversation with a view to setting the course for long
term prosperity. The Board is responsible for evaluating and
determining the environmental, social and governance risks of the
Group, and ensuring that relevant risk management and internal
control systems are in place and operate effectively.
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The table underneath shows aspects on the ESG Guide to be TRINTESGHRELE ST FETHHEE - A
assessed and those ESG issues were determined to be material to RETRAHAEENEBEANESGHERE -
the Group.

ESG Aspects as set forth in ESG Guide
(ESG R E155! ) T & ESG & H

Material ESG issues to the Group

HAEEMSEBEXWESGHE

(A)  Environmental
A IRE
A1 Emissions
Al BERW)
A2 Use of Resources
A2 EIR{ER
A3 Environment and Natural Resources
A3 RERRAER
(B)  Social
B) HE

B1  Employment and Labour Practises
Bl ERESLIER

B2  Health and Safety

B2 fEFHELE

B3  Development and Training
B3 &R KIEI

B4  Labour Standards

B4 #T%A

B5  Supply Chain Management
Bs ftrEpEIR

B6  Product Responsibility

B6 EmAE

B7  Anti-corruption

B7 RES

B8  Community Investment

B8 ttEEKE

24

Electricity consumption
AEs
Use of energy and paper

BEIR M AR BV (E

Labour practises

BIER

Workplace health and safety

TYEEMRERREEZ S

Employee development and training

B TR K

Anti-child and forced labour

[ T Ros g5 T

Supply chain management

HrEpeiR

Product responsibility

EmBE

Anti-corruption, fraud prevention and anti-money laundering
k&5 - REFERROEE

Community programmes, employee volunteering and donation

HEERE BETERESRIERE
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ENVIRONMENTAL

Environmental protection is one of the core values of the Group.
The Group has proactively looked for and implemented new
technology at various stages of its business in order to minimise its
impact on the environment. The Group’s products are designed to
be safe and environmental friendly for customer use, meaning
recyclable and safe to dispose materials are specified in its designs,
and clean production processes are adopted in its business
process. Moreover, unnecessary packaging that can cause harm to
environment is not introduced into its products.

The Group considers environmental protection an essential
component of sustainable and responsible business. The Group
strives to negative impacts on the environment and to seek
environmental friendly methods of operation. Given the nature of
the Group’s business, electricity was the most significant resources
consumed in Hong Kong, Macau and Shenzhen, the PRC during
the year.

The Current Environmental Policies

The Group’s main task is to measure and report the efforts in
reducing carbon footprints, promote waste reduction at source,
enhance its waste disposal management and set targets on
environmental performance. To minimise the environmental impacts
concerning the activities, products and services, the Group will:

° comply with applicable legal requirements and other
requirements which relate to the Group’s environmental
aspects, and to which the Group subscribes;

o identify environmental impacts associated with the operations
and set the targets to reduce stress on the environment in
consideration of social expectations;

. prevent pollution, reduce waste and minimise the
consumption of resources from all daily operations and
actively promote recycle, reuse and replace; and

° educate, train and motivate employees to develop a social
viewpoint that enables them to conduct business activities in
an environmentally responsible manner.

ZEEMREBARRAF / F#2020

R
BRERERAEENZOLEEZ — - AEEER
BE AR RERSHIL AR - LWEERD
HERBENTE -ARBEZEREEHEPER
MERLEH  REM  BEERHERAATE
WAR e 2 2 B MM K WHEREERERR
RBREETE - I RYERERSHIRE
BEREENTLREZBEK -

i

FAEERG RRARERAIHEEBEENEY
MEEBRED ARERORBIEERTES
MEEPE  ISRKREKFNEETRN - ER
AEENEBILE  RERNERE  BPIRHE
RYIT - BENREFRERANER °

ERHNREHRE

AREE M B ER AR 8 I 0 R IUR BB
R WIRE LRERZEYRD - INREEYEIE
BE ITREFRRERAER - RESRDED
EmERFERENEE  ARERS

. B rREAEENREEES @R AEER
ESHERERREREMBRTE

. B REPIIHNREXE  UBEHE
HERTFRRZ - ORERIFEE S

o HiEsd - B RE - R AREHIRD A
BEBRMNERERE  BREERK - B
FARE®R: &

. RE BB ETE 28 - &
PA—BHRBEABEN D ARREEEH -

25



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE -HERERRE

The Group is committed to ensuring its businesses are operated in
compliance with the following laws and regulations which have
significant impact:

a. the Law of the PRC on Import and Export Commodity
Inspection;

b. Guangdong Safety Technology and Prevention Regulation;
C. Product Quality Law of the PRC;
d. Environmental Protection Law of the PRC;

e. the Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of
Environmental Noise Pollution;

f. the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes;

g. the Regulations on the Administration of Construction Project
Environmental Protection; and

h. the Anti-terrorism Law of the People’s Republic of China and
Guangdong Safety Technology and Prevention Regulation.
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A1.1 Emissions Data from Gaseous Fuel Consumption
During the year, the key environmental impacts from the
Group’s operations were energy and paper consumptions.
To achieve environmental protection, the Group encourages
employees increase the use of e-statement or scanning
instead of traditional photocopying to reduce the use of
paper and greenhouse gas emissions; to switch-off all
computers and office equipment (such as lighting and air-
conditioner) at the end of each working day.

(@  Since the Group did not have town fuel and town gas
consumption during the year, therefore no relevant
emission data is available.

(b)  the Company had certain motor vehicles during the
year, the emissions data applied to the Group’s motor
vehicles are set out below:

A1 REBMEDERNBERER

RER AEEEETHNIZREFER
BERKARER - RERRRRE - K%
EEBE THENERAEFRERIFHEAE
BHREH - LB HRRER R ERET
W BETIERGERE - BEAMAEKA
W (R R =) o

(@) RGBT G R HERE AR
Ky R g8 - iR mAR B B B
]

b RNEAR KARREEETAE - ER
RAEETENFEREIERFILAT

Key Performance Index (“KPI”)
BRENER (BRERSED

% increase/

2020 2019 Unit (decrease)

#mCRa)

2020 & 20194 By ZBED %

NOx 81 72 Grammes 13%
A&ty 7

SOx 155 137 Grammes 13%
ety I

PM 6 5 Grammes 20%
AT AN FERL ) 7

Total 242 214 Grammes 13%
B 7
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A1.2 Greenhouse Gas Emission Al1.2 BERESK
KPI
BRENER
% increase/
2020 2019 Unit (decrease)
#h0, i)
2020 F 20195 By ZBAD %
Scope 1
£iE
Direct emission 28,324 25,093 Kg 13%
BEHEN NI
Scope 2
#iE2
Indirect emission 47,007 47,003 Kg 0%
e B NI
Scope 3
#[E3
Other indirect emission 3,108 9,147 Kg (66%)
Hoqth R EEBERL NI
Total 78,349 81,243 Kg (4%)
e NI
During the year, there were 78,349 kg (2019: 81,243 kg) of RER AEEZEELANLIERE(FE
greenhouse gases (mainly carbon dioxide, methane and BoEiE BEREITR) AT78,349 4
nitrous oxide) emitted from the Group’s operation. T (20194 : 81,243 AfT) »

The total gross floor area coverage for the Group during the
year was 1,270 m? (2019: 1,161 m?). The annual emission
intensity was 61.7 Kg CO, e/m? (2019: 70.0 Kg CO, e/m?).

REFER - BRELEmMER1,270F 75K (2019
F: 1161 TFHK) - FHREERETH
Ke17Afr Za ik E 2 (2019F « BF
FRT700RTZAIIE S

o
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Compliance with relevant laws and regulations:

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste of the Group during the year. In
addition, no significant fines or non-monetary sanctions for
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations had been
reported in the year.

A1.3 & A1.4 Hazardous and Non-hazardous Waste

The Group generates no hazardous waste in its operation.
However, there were non-hazardous waste which the
management of the Group believe to be insignificant arose
from the use of electricity during the Group’s operation.

A1.5 & A1.6 Handling of Hazardous and Non-hazardous

A2

Waste

Since the management of the Group believe the non-
hazardous waste is insignificant, there is no mitigation plan
for handle non-hazardous waste.

Use of Resource

The Group is committed to minimising the impact of business
activities on the environment, and supporting environmental
protection. In particular, a number of initiatives designed to
conserve resources were introduced to promote employee
awareness of the need to achieve efficient utilisation of
resources.

Energy conservation will not be effective without the support
of employees. The Group has been encouraging employees
to establish energy-saving habits at office, such as switching
off lights and electronic appliances before leaving the office,
as well as maintaining indoor temperature at 25.5°C. To
further conserve electricity, the Group has leased energy-
efficient high-speed printers for its daily operation. The Group
believes that the usage of water consumption and usage of
packaging material is insignificant.

ZEEMREBARRAF / F#2020
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During the year, the energy consumption by type in total of

RERN - AEBIRERIE 5 HRREIREFE

the Group are showed as below: BRI -
KPI
BREVER
% increase/
2020 2019 Unit (decrease)
21, (R4)
2020 F 20194 By ZEDE %
Electricity consumed 87,050 87,043 kWh 0%
BE TR
Oil consumed 122,200 108,260 kWh 13%
S T E B
Total energy consumed 209,250 195,303 kWh 7%
REUREREE T ELBF
Total floor area of facilities 1,270 1,161 m? 9%
R B E R K
Electricity consumed per square metre 165 168 kWh/m? (2%)
Y KAES FREFHK

A3 Environmental and Natural Resources

The Group’s activities did not have direct significant impact
on the environment and natural resources beyond the
resource consumption and emissions issues discussed
above. The Group will continue to explore ways of integrating
environmental considerations into its business decisions and
the services it provides, including promoting and supporting
ways to combat climate change.

There was no non-compliance with any environmental laws
and regulations for the year.
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SOCIAL

Being a responsible business and employer, the Group is
committed to consistently looking for ways to meet the corporate
social responsibilities. The Group focuses on the welfare of its staff,
environment and community as well as its business partners.

B1 Employment and Labour Practises

The Group places a significant emphasis on developing
human capital, provides competitive remuneration and
welfare packages. Promotion opportunities and salary
adjustments are benchmarked against individual
performance. Employees are entitled to benefits such as
annual leave, sick leave, maternity leave, marriage leave,
funeral leave and medical coverage in accordance with local
regulations.

The Group emphasises on equal opportunities for all
personnel in respect of hiring, pay rates, training and
development, promotion and other terms of employment.
The Group is committed to providing a work environment
free from any form of discrimination on the basis of ethnicity,
gender, religion, age, disability or sexual orientation.

The Group has a wide diversity of cultures including
employees with different genders, ages, skills, educational
backgrounds, industry experiences and other qualifications in
order to achieve the most suitable composition and balance.

The Group’s remuneration package is structured with
reference to the individual performance, working experience
and prevailing salary levels in the market. In additional to
basic salaries and mandatory provident fund for the Group’s
Hong Kong employees, fringe benefits including flexible leave
arrangement, medical coverage scheme and annual dinner
are available.

The Group complies with relevant ordinances and statutory
requirements, such as the Employment Ordinance (Chapter
57 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance (Chapter 282 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485
of the Laws of Hong Kong) of Hong Kong. During the year,
the Group has had no non-compliance with any laws and
regulations on employment.

ZEEMREBARRAF / F#2020
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The employee handbook of the Group’s PRC subsidiary had
been developed in accordance with the Labour Law of the
PRC and has been distributed to all employees since they
joined. The remuneration policies are determined on the basis
of performance, qualification and experience of individual
employee. The remuneration generally includes salaries and
allowances.

During the year, the Group’s PRC subsidiary had subscribed
to those basic pension insurance, basic medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, occupational injury insurance,
maternity insurance as prescribed by the Social Insurance
Law of the PRC, as well as housing fund schemes as
prescribed by the Regulations on the Administration of
Housing Fund.

Employees’ wages, overtime payments and related benefits
are made not less than the local government’s minimum
requirements. The normal working hours for general
employees are generally 8 hours a day and 40 hours a week.
Integrated computation of working hours is implemented with
reference to the requirements of the Labour Law of the PRC.

The Group is committed to ensuring its businesses are
operated in compliance with the following laws and
regulations which have significant impact:

a. Employees’” Compensation Ordinance (Chapter 282 of
the Laws of Hong Kong);

b. Occupiers Liability Ordinance (Chapter 314 of the Laws
of Hong Kong);

c. Minimum Wage Ordinance (Chapter 608 of the Laws
of Hong Kong);

d. Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong);

e. Construction Workers Registration Ordinance (Chapter
588 of the Laws of Hong Kong);
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f. Regulatory Regime to which SE Macau is subject in

relation to Labour Matters in Macau;

g. the Labour Law of the PRC;

h. the Labour Contract Law of the PRC, the Provisional
Regulations on Collection and Payment of Social

Insurance Premium; and

i. The Regulations on Management of Housing Provident

Fund.

Staff Composition

As at 31 March 2020, the Group employed a total of 70
(2019: 70) staff, including operational office, sales and
marketing, and back office division. All staff members are

allocated in Hong Kong and the PRC.

EREPIBREPIS T EBRARNE
EHIE

g (REAREMBELEE):

h.  (PEARKMELSE RZE)RGE
SIRBBEEETIEN) &
EELESEBIED) -

N=1: 774

20203 A31 8 - AEELEATOZE
T (20194 : 70%) * RREEBHAE -
& MBITHETIREERAE - TETIIE
ABHDREBEUARFH o

(a)  Employee’s Age and Gender Distribution (@ IEFERE D HIES RS
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
Age Group Male Female Male Female
FHeE Bl £ z e z
0-15 0% 0% 0% 0%
0% —157%
16-18 0% 0% 0% 0%
16 5% -18 5%
19-30 30% 4% 24% 6%
19 5% -30 5%
31-45 27% 10% 30% 10%
315745 %
46-60 17% 9% 17% 1%
46 5% —60 5%
=61/>61 3% 0% 2% 0%
61 BRI
Total 77% 23% 73% 27%
B

[ELERERRBEAR AR / £32020
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(b)  Employee’s Geographical and Gender Distribution (b)  1EHIEE D HIE S 155
2020 2019
2020 F 20194

Age Group Male Female Male Female
& 5 z 3 z
Hong Kong 56% 14% 50% 17%
0

The PRC 21% 9% 23% 10%
&

Total 7% 23% 73% 27%
mE

The Group will continue to provide a well-structured and
caring environment to employees to raise their sense of
belonging and work efficiency in the Group.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits and welfare of
the Group during the year. In addition, no non-compliance
with relevant laws and regulations that resulted in significant
fines or sanctions had been reported during the year.

Employees’ Health and Safety

The management of the Group recognises that the
operational efficiency of an enterprise and the maintenance
of a healthy and safety working environment for all employees
are closely related. The Group continues to maintain a
healthy and safety working environment for its employees so
as to attract and retain talented employees which is in line
with established internal guidelines and systems of the
Group.
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The Group provides its employee with flexible rest leave
arrangement, medical and hospital scheme. The Group
understands that a good working environment for its
employees with a safe and comfortable working condition is
very important. A set of clear guideline of work arrangement
under typhoon and rainstorm warning had been formulated
by the Group for its employees to follow.

AEBERETRHEBERNKSMRERLHE
BRELBERTE - AEEAQRE TRH
—EAZE FENTEREFRFER - X
SECHEAMORR RRESTHER
gl BB THITTE -

Occupational Health and Safety Data BT DB
The information of work accidence are set out below: TEEMMERIMTIRAITR
2020 2019

2020 F 20194
Health and Safety Male Female Male Female
REHEZZ BH zH St pegid
Number of work-related fatalities 0% 0% 0% 0%
AT EREMIL TR A
Lost days due to work injury 0% 0% 0% 0%

ATEELATIIEBS

During the year, the Group had no non-compliance with any
laws and regulations on occupational health and safety.

Development and Training

Staff development forms an important aspect of the Group’s
human resources policy. The Group places a strong
emphasis on providing training to its employees to retain
appropriate and suitable personnel for its long-term
development.

The Group has committed to provide on-the-job education
and training to its employees in order to enhance their
knowledge and skills. All employees are encouraged to
enhance their skills and knowledge at every opportunity in
order to perform their current job more efficiently and
effectively and to be better prepared for career opportunities
which may arise. During the year, regular training courses
were provided to the employees included but not limited to
orientation training, technical training and quality training.
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Performance evaluations are initiated annually. In order to
recognise the value in the skill and experience of the Group’s
employees, the Group has adopted a policy that any
promotions will be considered internally first before hiring any
outside staff. It is the Group’s policy to select the most
suitable candidate for appointment to a higher rank based on
merit, rather than on the seniority of the candidates.

Labour Standard

The Group is fully awarded that child labour and forced
labour violate fundamental human rights, International Labour
Conventions and Recommendations and poses a threat to
sustainable social and economic development. Therefore, the
Group strictly complied with relevant laws and regulations.
The Group prohibits the hiring of child labour by reviewing the
actual age of the interviewee during the recruitment process,
including the examination of identity documents and detailed
records. The Group only carries out the requirements of
standard labour contract and does not adopt any means to
unfairly restrict the employment relationship between
employees and the enterprise by, for example, withholding a
deposit or identity documents.

For entry registration, all employees must present to the
Group valid documents as follows: (i) identity card and
vocational qualification certificate; (i) social security card; (iii)
medical or health certificate; (iv) recent photos; and (v) other
relevant information and documents. The above procedures
can ensure no child labour will be employed.

Being people-oriented, the Group has hosted various social
events and activities such as company trips and parties for
its employees with the aim of promoting work-life balance.

During the year, the Group had no non-compliance with any
relevant child labour and forced labour laws.
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Supply Chain Management

The Group has the greatest respect for the laws and
regulations that govern its business. The Group strives to
adhere to international best practices and conduct fair and
unbiassed procurement processes when dealing with
suppliers.

The Group adheres to the principle of transparency and
implements the value of honesty, integrity and fairness in its
supply chain management. The Group’s procurement
procedures provide directions and guidelines on evaluation
and engagement when dealing with suppliers of goods and
services to ensure business is conducted with legally,
financially and technically-sound entities. In addition, approval
procedures are in place to ensure that supplier engagements
are monitored and approved by the appropriate level of
management.

During the selection process of suppliers, the Group takes
into account such as its reputation, quality of services and
products, past performance and green elements.

Product Responsibility

A high priority for the Group is to ensure customer
satisfaction in terms of the products and services. Strenuous
efforts are made to ensure compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations relating to product health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters of the jurisdictions
in which the Group operates. The Group requires its
employees to comply with applicable governmental and
regulatory laws, rules, codes and regulations.

The Company was awarded 2019 The Most Influential
Security Brands Innovative Top 10 (2019 S E B L&A
FEH+ R, T RAEADES R and AIOT e (F
FRRR 7 Z4E) | organised by CPS Media Group and Z 277
49 and China Public Security (CPS %2 48) respectively.

During the year, the Group did not have any product subject
to recall and did not receive any compliant from its customers
in relation to either the quality of its services or products. The
Group had no non-compliance cases regarding violations of
relevant laws and regulations on product responsibility and
data privacy.
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Anti-corruption

Corruption, bribery or fraud in any form is strictly prohibited.
The Group’s anti-corruption policies set out standards of
conduct to which all employees are required to adhere in
order to promote the integrity environment in the workplace.

The management believes that the integrity of business is the
foundation of corporate social responsibility, as well as a
fundamental element for a business’s competitive advantage
and sustainability. The Group is committed to the highest
possible standards of openness, probity and accountability.

To combat corruption and to govern conflicts of interest,
unless with the Group’s approval, Directors and employees
are prohibited from accepting any valuable items from co-
workers, customers, suppliers or other stakeholders. Unless
with approval the Board, senior management members are
also prohibited from engaging in any activities that involve a
potential conflict of interest with the Group or may do harm
to the Group’s overall interests. Breaches are subject to
disciplinary actions, including termination of employment
contracts where necessary.

Various policies have also been formulated to accord with the
Securities and Futures Commission’s Guideline on Anti-
Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing, including
the basic procedures for customer identification and due
diligence, suspicious transactions report and recordkeeping.
Ongoing staff training has also been carried out to ensure
each of the employees is fully aware of these policies.

In 2020, there was no legal case concerning corruption
brought against the Group or employees.

Community Investment

The Group always seeks to be a positive force in the
communities in which it operates and to maintain close
communications and interactions with the communities in
order to contribute to local development from time to time.

The Group strives to improve its social image and social
responsibility through community investment. All employees
of the Group are encouraged to participate in helping and
supporting the local communities and neighbours with their
own initiatives.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTISES

The Group has committed to upholding high standards of corporate
governance. The Board considers that enhanced public accountability
and corporate governance are beneficial to the healthy growth of the
Group, improving customer and supplier confidence and safeguarding the
interests of Shareholders.

The Company has adopted and complied with the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing
Rules as its own code and has complied with the CG Code for the year
ended 31 March 2020, except for the following deviation. The Board has
continued to monitor and review the corporate governance principles and
practises to ensure compliance.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

CG Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. Mr. Tony Yuen is the chairman and the chief executive
officer of the Company. In view that Mr. Tony Yuen is one of the founders
of the Group and has been operating and managing the Group since
June 1999, the Board believes that it is in the best interest of the Group
to have Mr. Tony Yuen taking up both roles for effective management and
business development. Therefore the Board considers that the deviation
from the CG Code provision A.2.1 is appropriate in such circumstance.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors (the “Model Code”) on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings (the “Required Standard of
Dealings”) as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Upon the specific enquiry made to all the Directors, the Company was
not aware of any non-compliance with the Model Code and the Required
Standard of Dealings regarding securities transactions by the Directors for
the period from date of the Listing to 31 March 2020.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

The Board currently comprises eight Directors, including four executive
Directors, one non-executive Director and three independent non-
executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Yuen Kwok Wai, Tony (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Yuen Mei Ling, Pauline

Ms. Sun Ngai Chu, Danielle

Mr. Mui Pak Kuen (Redesignated from an independent
non-executive Director to an executive Director on 2 March 2020)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Yam Chiu Fan, Joseph

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Hui Man Ho, lvan

Mr. Chung Billy

Mr. Poon Wai Hung Richard (Appointed on 2 March 2020)

Details of backgrounds and qualifications of all Directors are set out in the
section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” of this
annual report. All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the
affairs of the Group. Each executive Director has sufficient experience,
knowledge and execution ability to hold the position so as to carry out his
duties effectively and efficiently.
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During the year ended 31 March 2020, one general meeting, five regular
Board meetings and other Board meetings were held in addition to
circulation of written resolution. Attendance records of these meetings are

shown below:

0
0,

HE2020F3AGIALFE  BRTEREEARER
BEET—ABREAS AAFREFSCHALEMES
EE o SREFLSEIIRAT ¢

General Audit Remuneration  Nomination
Name of member BERR Meeting Board  Committee = Committee = Committee
RRAE E£Eg ERERES] FMZES REZES®

Number of total meetings eEay 1 5 4 3 2
Number of Meetings CHESREZAE, 48

attended/Total
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Yuen Kwok Wai, Tony e il 5/5 N/ATE A N/ATER N/ATiE A
Ms. Yuen Mei Ling, Pauline B LL 1/1 56 NANER 33 NANER
Ms. Sun Ngai Chu, Danielle 28 il 5/5 N/ATEA NATER N/ATEA
Mr. Mui Pak Kuen (Redesignated from 1B 4 4 (7420203 A2 H

an independent non-executive RBEIFDTESZRAER

Director to an executive Director on HITER)

2 March 2020) 1/1 5/5 4/4 2/3 2/2
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Yam Chiu Fan, Joseph FRBA L. 11 5/5 N/ATE A N/ATER N/AT @
Independent non-executive BUEHTES

Directors
Mr. Hui Man Ho, lvan OB AE 11 5/5 4/4 3/3 2/2
Mr. Chung Billy BTEELE 11 5/5 4/4 3/3 2/2
Mr. Poon Wai Hung Richard EEERE

(Appointed on 2 March 2020) (R2020% 3 A2 HEZ ) N/ANiE N/A i R N/AT i N/AZN i N/ATERA
21580 B B AR A R / 452020 41
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THE RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the control and leadership of management
company’s business and is collectively responsible for the Company’s
affair under the Board’s direction and supervision. All the Directors should
make decision objectively in the interests of the Company.

The overall responsibilities of the Board include considering and making
decisions on the following matters:

(i) setting the cooperate goals of the Group and formulating the
Group’s strategy and monitoring the implementation;

(ii) diversification and extension of activities into new business areg;
(i) approving the annual, half year and quarterly results;

(iv)  dividend policy;

(v) material acquisitions and disposal;

(vi)  reviewing and monitoring the Group’s internal control systems;
(vi)  monitoring the performance of the management; and

(vii)  determining and reviewing the composition and diversity of the Board.

BOARD COMPOSITION AND DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy since 18 January 2018.
The policy sets out the approach to achieve diversity in the Board that should
have a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the requirements of the Group’s business and compliance with policies.
The composition and diversity policies of the Board is reviewed annually and
regularly. The Board should ensure that its changes in composition will not
result in any undue interference. The Board members should possess
appropriate professionalism, experience and trustworthiness in performing
duties and functions. The Board would diversify its members according to
the Company’s situations and need. While participating in nomination and
recommendation of director candidates during the year, each member of the
Board may consider a range of diversity perspectives, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, or professional
experience in achieving diversity for the benefit of the Company’s various
business development and management. The Board is to review the policy
concerning diversity of Board members, and to disclose the policy or a
summary of the policy in the corporate governance report, including any
quantitative targets and standards and its progress with policy
implementation.

In 2020, the Board has reviewed the diversity of the Board and
considered the Board composition and diversity policy is appropriate.
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MANAGEMENT

The daily management, administration and operation of the Company are
delegated to the chief executive officer and senior management (the
“Management”). The delegated functions and assignments are
periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior
to entering into any significant transactions by the above mentioned
officers.

The overall responsibilities of the Management include considering and
making decisions on the following matters:

i) implementing the Group’s policy and strategies as set by the
Board;

(i) strategic planning of different business and functions;

(i) closely monitoring operational and financial results in accordance
with plans and budgets;

(iv)  putting adequate operational, planning and financial control
systems in place; and

(v)  managing the Group’s day-to-day business.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

In compliance with Rules 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three independent non-executive Directors; and
at least one of whom has appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise. Each of the
independent non-executive Directors has made an annual confirmation in
writing of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules and the Company considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors were independent during 2018 since their respective date of
appointment.

All independent non-executive Directors are identified as such in all
corporate communications containing the names of the Directors by the
Company.

Mr. Tony Yuen (the chairman of the Board, the chief executive officer and
an executive Director) and Ms. Jazzy Wong (a member of the senior
management) are spouse. Mr. Tony Yuen and Ms. Pauline Yuen (an
executive Director) are siblings. Mr. Tony Yuen and Mr. Joseph Yam (a
non-executive Director) are brothers-in-law. Mr. Joseph Yam is a brother-
in-law of Ms. Jazzy Wong and Ms. Pauline Yuen, Ms. Jazzy Wong and
Ms. Pauline Yuen are sisters-in-law. Save as otherwise disclosed herein,
there is no family or other material relationship among members of the
Board.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, should keep
abreast of their collective responsibilities as Directors and of the
businesses and activities of the Group. The Group also provides briefings
and other training to develop and refresh the Directors’ knowledge and
skills, and updates all Directors on the latest developments regarding the
GEM Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and to enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practises.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Directors provided their
training record to the Company in respect of their participation in training

FEEXRE

EREF(BEBYIFNTES) EEUEREZRRA
SEEBRTHOHARET - ARBETSREBGHRER
HAIEG) - PAZHR I 5 3728 S5 HO A0 S BB - AL GEM
EHRAREMEREERENRMERAZBESRR
HEHER BRAALNEBESHRFEEERER

H R o

HZE2020F3ANALEFE  EERFEELX2MESRE
SEALITRARESZEFSMBENEIES (HE

activities such as attending seminars relevant to their duties and  #fs1 &) AZARQ TIREIEII4EE - B0 ¢
responsibilities as directors of a listed company, particulars of which are
as follows:
Reading Attending
materials the seminar
relevant to Attending relevant to
directors’ the seminar the skill of
duties and provided by the Director’s
responsibilities the Company position
HEERBER HEEESERY
BEAREWEE HEA A RRM BEEHREN
R HENE maE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Yuen Kwok Wai, Tony BrBa& 5 A4 v/ v/ v
Ms. Yuen Mei Ling, Pauline [TESEF o v 4 4
Ms. Sun Ngai Chu, Danielle BRIzt v/ v/ v
Mr. Mui Pak Kuen (Redesignated from an  #§#g# 55 4 (7220204 3 B 2 H
independent non-executive Director to MBI IENTEERTA
an executive Director on 2 March 2020) HITEE) v/ v/ 4
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Yam Chu Fan, Joseph TR E v 4 v
Independent non-executive Directors BN FHITESE
Mr. Hui Man Ho, lvan USSR E v/ v/ v/
Mr. Chung Billy BEEEE v/ v/ v
Mr. Poon Wai Hung Richard EEERAE
(Appointed on 2 March 2020) (FA2020% 3 A2 BEZRT) N/AE A N/A 6 A N/ATiE A
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Tony Yuen is both the chairman and the chief executive officer of the
Company. In view that Mr. Tony Yuen is one of the founders of the Group
and has been operating and managing the Group since June 1999, the
Board believes that it is in the best interest of the Group to have Mr. Tony
Yuen taking up both roles for effective management and business
development. The role of the Chairman is primarily responsible for
managing the Board, whereas the role of the chief executive officer is
primarily responsible for overseeing the various businesses of the Group.
Their respective roles and responsibilities are summarised as follows:

Responsibilities of the chairman include: (i) leading the Board and
ensuring that the Board functions effectively and smoothly; (i) chairing the
Board and shareholder’s meetings; (iii) approving the agenda for each
Board meeting, taking into account, where appropriate, any matters
proposed by the other Directors and the company secretary of the
Company for inclusion in the agenda; (iv) ensuring all Directors receive all
relevant information prior to each meeting and are properly briefed on
issues arising at Board meetings; (v) ensuring all key and appropriate
issues are discussed by the Board in a timely and constructive manner;
(vi) encouraging all Directors, including the independent non-executive
Directors, to actively participate in all Board and Board committees
meetings and promoting a culture of openness for the Directors to share
and voice their concerns on all matters during each meeting; (vii) ensuring
good corporate governance practises and procedures are established
and followed; and (viii) taking appropriate steps to provide effective
communication with Shareholders and to ensure that Shareholders’ view
are communicated to the Board as a whole.

Responsibilities of the chief executive officer include: () implementing the
Group’s policy and strategies as set by the Board; (i) strategic planning of
different business and functions; (i) closely monitoring operational and
financial results in accordance with plans and budgets; (iv) assuming full
accountability to the Board for all aspects of the Group’s operations and
performance; (v) maintaining ongoing dialogue with the Chairman and the
other Directors; (vi) developing and leading an effective executive team;
(vii) putting adequate operational, planning and financial control systems
in place ; and (viii) representing the Company and managing the Group’s
day-to-day business.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

All Directors are appointed for an initial term of three years and subject to
retirement by rotation and eligible for re-election in accordance with the
Company’s articles of association (the “Articles”). At each annual general
meeting, not less than one third of the Directors then in office shall retire
and every Director is subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years.

All existing executive Directors, non-executive Director and independent
non-executive Directors are entitled to a fixed remuneration per month or
fee per annum respectively. The remuneration of each Director is subject
to the annual review of the Board with reference to his/her contribution in
terms of time, effort and his/her expertise.

Details of remuneration paid to each of the Directors during the year are
disclosed in Note 13 to the financial statements.

All Directors are entitled to be reimbursed for reasonable expenses
incurred during the performance of their duties to the Company and are
eligible for share options under the Scheme.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three board committees, namely, the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination committee,
all with specific terms of reference clearly defining the powers and
responsibilities of the respective board committees. All board committees
are required by their terms of reference to report to the Board in relation
to their decisions, findings or recommendations.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (“Audit Committee”)
with written terms of reference that are in conformity of the requirements
of the CG Code which are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The Audit Committee is currently composed of the three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chung Billy, Mr. Hui Man Ho, Ivan
and Mr. Poon Wai Hung Richard, and chaired by Mr. Chung Billy, with all
members being independent non-executive Directors in full compliance
with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 March 2020, four Audit Committee meetings were

held and the members’ attendance is shown on page 41 of this annual
report.
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The role and functions of the Audit Committee include:

@)

Relationship with the Company’s auditor

(@)

to consider and be primarily responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and to
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and any questions of its resignation or
dismissal;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards. The Audit Committee
should discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences.
In connection, the Audit Committee shall:

o consider all relationships between the Company and
the external auditor (including non-audit services);

° obtain from the external auditor annually information
about policies and processes for maintaining
independence and monitoring compliance with relevant
requirements, including those for rotation of audit
partners and staff; and

o meet with the external auditor, at least annually, in the
absence of the management, to discuss matters
relating to its audit fee, any issues arising from the
audit and any other matters the external auditor may
wish to raise;

to develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditor to supply non-audit services. For this purpose,
external auditor includes any entity that is under common
control, ownership or management with the audit firm or any
entity that a reasonable and informed third party knowing all
relevant information would reasonably conclude to be part of
the audit firm nationally or internationally. When assessing the
external auditor’s independence or objectivity in relation to
non-audit service, the Audit Committee shall consider:

. whether the skills and experience of the audit firm
make it a suitable supplier of the non-audit services;

ZEEMREBARRAF / F#2020

B

(i)

REEGNAE MBS

Joiel

=z

=

a

AR BZBETHREF

ZRAUTEEERIIERHBENEE =
MEERBRAEFSENER AN
SAZ B Y HT BN S B ARSR - MR IR
BRZZ BB B R 2R BA RO 8

B R 2 BRERE RERINE R E
TEREBRERZBIEFOERE - FiX
ZEgRNEZ I (ER AR =B
WRBEERSERAERHET - st
s #BRZEEA:

. BT AR B BRSNS BB 2 A PR
ME (BRIFEERE)

. BERIMNEREMISER - TR
BRgE RSB EARERE
A AR TE 9177 77 [ AT ER A B0 IR S AN A2
Fr BEgGnBaBARBES
BE R

. ELEBFEEEETNESNBERATE
RONEZEE —IR - el
REMNER EARZBTEEE
M= E RSN BENRIR B e T
fhEEIE

FhHMNIE A SR 2 41 3F B AR TS 6 E MUK
W F AT - BULREM S - SMNEERRD
BREEAAERBNORBEN R — 5 -
FRERREEREZ THEREE  H—@
EEMNTMEEMERNE =71 £AE
BRTEHEZRBENZATERENA
AR A T SR BIR R A0 — BP0 BV (L S -
FERFHIMNSZ BRED A B IR R IR 1 T8 3L
EREBER  EREEEATRE

&

. =S % OWNCIECE ZARIE <SPS
B ERBAEENIIFEZREHE
"B

47



Corporate Governance Report
TEEBRE

. whether there are safeguards in place to ensure that
there is no threat to the objectivity and independence
of the audit because the external auditor provides non-
audit services;

o the nature of the non-audit services, the related fee
levels and fee levels individually and in total relative to
the audit firm; and

° criteria for compensation of the individuals performing
the audit.

The Audit Committee should report to the Board, identifying
and making recommendation on any matters where action or
improvement is needed; and

to approve the policies on hiring employees or former
employees of the external auditor and monitoring the
application of these policies and consider whether there has
been or appears to be any impairment of the auditor’s
judgement or independence for the audit.

(i) Review of the Company’s financial information

(@)

48

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements
and annual reports and accounts, half-year reports and, if
prepare for publication, quarterly reports, and to review
significant financial reporting judgements contained in them.
It is the responsibility of the Audit Committee to determine
the scope and extent of the review. The Audit Committee
may refer to relevant statements of auditing standards and
audited guidelines in relation to review of these reports for
guidance. In reviewing these reports before submission to
the Board, the Audit Committee should focus particularly on:

(1) any changes in accounting policies and practises;

(2)  major judgement areas;

(8)  significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(4)  the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(6)  compliance with accounting standards; and

(6) compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting.
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(b)  regarding point (a) above:

(i)

(©

(1) members of the Audit Committee should liaise with the
Board and Company’s senior management and the
Audit Committee must meet, at least twice a year, with
the Company’s auditor; and

(2)  the Audit Committee should consider any significant or
unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected in
the report and accounts, and it should give due
consideration to any matters that have been raised by
the Company'’s staff responsible for the accounting
and financial reporting function, compliance officer or
auditor.

to provide full details of any disagreement by the Audit
Committee with the accounting treatment adopted by the
Company.

Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting system, risk

management and internal control procedures

(@)

to review the Company’s financial controls, and unless
expressly addressed by a separate board risk committee, or
by the Board itself, to review the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems;

to discuss the risk management and the internal control
systems with management to ensure that management has
performed its duty to have effective systems. This discussion
should include the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function;

to consider major investigations findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on
its own initiative and management’s response to these
findings;

where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-
ordination between the internal and external auditor, and to
ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced
and has appropriate standing within the Company, and to
review and monitor its effectiveness;

to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practises;

ZEEMREBARRAF / F#2020

(iii)

)

A (@EME :

(1) BERZEGKEAHEEETRARF
BREEARRE BZZEE
FEEARBNZBEREMA

Rl

@ BERZEGEEENZERENIER
PATRIR ST RRAEMERS AT
FFER UREEZETMHAAT
BTt RMBERKE - aRTE
FAZEEI R HAEIR -

HARFMBRANERENETKAR
B REEZZE S TRABMFAER

EEANAYBRBHE AREERAIE
BEF

(@)

AR A IS E LR (B 36 B
EeETRRZESXNESTSATARE
bR i YN Dol 2 =D SR R g
E;

HEEEIWRAREEABEERS
EREEECETREEZLEMMHIE
WMWMATEBEARRERT KM BER
BeEmENER BETERERKERREST
% AR BTAEZHEIRIERBME
BXERBTRE

THREEZENRIK REHARER
EABEREENERHEERNERE
HREHERNEEETHE

WA RRRENBEZINGE - ARERAR
FONBAZ AN 6 TAES B33 ¢ th A RER
NEBBEZDEERRRANNERAERE
15 WAABEEMNMA - U R RER
HAR

WA AREOM B R BRLER

49



u“mfﬂ-ﬂ' A, | UL

Corporate Governance Report

TRERHRE

) to review the external auditor’s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
the accounting records, financial accounts or systems of
control and management’s response;

(9 toensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’'s management letter;

(h)  to report to the Board on the matters in these terms of
reference and those set out in the code provisions as stated
in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules from time to time;

(i) to review arrangements by which employees of the Company
can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters, and the Audit Committee should ensure that proper
arrangements are in place for fair and independent
investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-up
action;

() to act as the key representation body for overseeing the
Group’s relationship with the external auditor;

(k)  to establish a whistleblowing policy and system for
employees and those who deal with the Company (e.g.
customers and suppliers) to raise concerns, in confidence,
with the Audit Committee about possible improprieties in any
matter related to the Company;

() to review the half-year report prepared by the Group’s
corporate guarantee committee on its work and information
relating to the provision of corporate guarantees; and

(m)  to consider other topics, as defined by the Board.
Major accomplishments in 2020 comprised the following:

(@  reviewed the financial statements for disclosure on a
quarterly, half-yearly and annually basis, where applicable;

(b)  reviewed the external auditor’s significant findings and
management’s response to the recommendation raised, if
any;

(c)  reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system and
the adequacy of the accounting and financial reporting
function of the Group;

(d)  confirmed that there is no disagreement between World Link
CPA Limited and the Company, and there is no other matters
in respect of the resignation of World Link CPA Limited which
shall be brought to the attention of the holders of securities
or creditors of the Company.
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(e) recommend to the Board of the appointment of McMillan
Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited as the Company’s auditor
to fill the casual vacancy after the resignation of the previous
auditor and hold office until the next annual general meeting
of the Company.

) reviewed and approved the external auditor’s statutory audit
scope for 2020 and the letter of representation to be given by
the Board; and

(@9  considered and approved the 2020 external audit fees and
engagement letters.

The Group’s internal control system is reviewed regularly by management.
With the view of enhancing the Group’s internal control system, during
the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company had appointed McMillan
Woods Corporate Service Limited, as independent consultant, to review
the Group’s internal control systems and recommend actions to improve
our internal controls.

Based on the review, the Audit Committee is of the view that the Group’s
internal control system was effective and in compliance with the
requirements of the CG Code C.2.1 for the year ended 31 March 2020.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external
auditor for the year ended 31 March 2020.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2020 and recommended approval to
the Board.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a remuneration committee
(“Remuneration Committee”) with written terms of reference in
accordance with the requirement of the CG Code. In accordance with
provisions set out in the CG Code are available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Remuneration Committee is currently composed of the one executive
Director and three independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms.
Yuen Mei Ling, Pauline, Mr. Poon Wai Hung Richard, Mr. Chung Billy and
Mr. Hui Man Ho, Ivan, and chaired by Mr. Chung Billy.

For the year ended 31 March 2020, three Remuneration Committee

meetings were held and the members’ attendance is shown on page 41
of this Report.
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The role and functions of the Remuneration Committee include:

U

(i)

(i)

(v)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

52

to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and senior
management of the Group and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management.
This should include benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable for
loss or termination of their office or appointment;

to determine the policy and make recommendations to the Board
on remuneration of non-executive Directors;

to assess the performance of executive Directors;

to approve the terms of executive Directors’ service contracts;

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Company and its subsidiaries;

to review and approve compensation payable to executive Directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms
and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that they
are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable
and appropriate;

to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration;
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(vii)
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(xi)  to form a view in respect of service contracts to be granted by the
Group under Rule 17.90 of the GEM Listing Rules that require
Shareholders’ approval and advise Shareholders (other than
Shareholders who are Directors with a material interests in the
service contracts and their associates) as to whether the terms are
fair and reasonable, advise whether such contracts are in the
interests of the Company and its Shareholders as a whole and
advise Shareholders how to vote. An independent non-executive
Director who has a material interest in any such contracts shall not
sit on the Remuneration Committee;

(xi)  to consider the granting of share options to Directors pursuant to
any share option scheme adopted by the Company;

(xiil)  to ensure due compliance with any relevant disclosure requirements
in respect of the remuneration of Directors under the GEM Listing
Rules, the Companies Ordinance and any other statutory
requirements;

(xiv) to consult the chairman of the Board and/or chief executive of the
Company about their remuneration proposals for other executive
Directors;

(xv)  to do any such things to enable to the Remuneration Committee to
discharge its powers and functions conferred on it by the Board;

(xvi) to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the
Memorandum of Association and the Articles or imposed by
legislation and the GEM Listing Rules; and

(xvii) to consider other topics, as defined by the Board.

Major accomplishments in 2020 comprised the review of matters relating
to the remuneration packages and emoluments of Directors and senior
management.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) with written terms of reference. The terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee are in conformity with the requirements of the
CG Code and are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.

The Nomination Committee is currently composed of the three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Hui Man Ho, Ivan, Mr.
Chung Billy and Mr. Poon Wai Hung Richard, and chaired by Mr. Hui Man
Ho, Ivan.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020, two Nomination Committee meetings
were held and the members’ attendance is shown on page 41 of this
annual report.

The role and functions of the Nomination Committee include:

i) to formulate nomination policy for consideration of the Board and
implement the nomination policy laid down by the Board;

(i) without prejudice to the generality of foregoing;

(@  to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

(b)  to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

(c) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

(d)  to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and re-appointment of Directors, and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive;

(e)  to determine the policy for the nomination of Directors;

) to adopt nomination procedures, process and criteria to
select and recommend candidates for directorship;

(9 todo any such things to enable to the Nomination Committee
to discharge its powers and functions conferred on it by the
Board; and

(h)  to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that
may from time to time be prescribed by the Board or
contained in the Memorandum of Association and the Articles
or imposed by legislation and the GEM Listing Rules;

(i) in respect of any proposed service contracts to be entered into by
any members of the Group with its Director or proposed Director,
which require the prior approval of the Shareholders of the
Company at general meeting, to review and provide
recommendations to the Shareholders of the Company (other than
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(iv)

V)

Shareholders who are Directors with a material interest in the
relevant service contracts and their respective associates) as to
whether the terms of the service contracts are fair and reasonable
and whether such service contracts are in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole, and to advise
Shareholders on how to vote;

to review the policy concerning diversity of the Board and the
measurable objectives for implementing such policy from time to
time adopted by the Board, and to review the progress on
achieving these objectives; and

to consider other topics, as defined by the Board.

Major accomplishments in 2020 comprised recommending to the Board
the re-designation of Mr. Mui Pak Kuen and appointment of Mr. Poon Wai
Hung Richard of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions which includes:

(i)

(i)

(iv)

developing and reviewing the Group’s policies and practises on
corporate governance;

reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

reviewing and monitoring the Group’s policies and practises on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors; and

reviewing the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the CG Report.

Major accomplishments in 2020 comprised the followings:

M

(i)

(i)

evaluated the Group’s policies and practises on corporate
governance and made appropriate amendments;

arranged the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management; and

reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
The fees in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by the
external auditors, (1) McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited, (2)
World Link CPA Limited and their network firm to the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2020 are as follows:

ZEETEN &
HZE 202093 31 H Jt¢ B NEZER ()RS (BE)
SRMEBARAR - () ELRE(HRE) QS

i‘%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁx’&ET&E%M%EXEFEWZK%ITEL\E‘J%&&?E
ERRGEDT

Services rendered HK$
RAEH R BT
(1) McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited MES (BB SHMEBFERAA
Audit services EIZIRTE
— Audit the consolidated financial statements of — BRAEEEZE2020F 3 A31 HILFE

the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020 ZEREMB®RE 500,000
Non-audit services FIEEZIRTE
— Non-audit services include (i) tax compliance service; — EBEIRFEBIE () RIS RRTS

(ii) risk assessment and internal control review; and (i BB 5 R EB ISR - &

(iiiy environmental, social and governance reporting. (i) 3% - (g REAWRE - 100,000
(2) World Link CPA Limited QELRE (BB SETAEEMBRAF]
Non-audit services IEEZIRTE
— Non-audit services include review of quarterly/interim — ERRBBESMEE THEBER

financial information 50,000
The accounts for the year ended 31 March 2020 were audited by EZ2020F3 A3 HILFEZEBEHET(BEH)E

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited whose term of office will
expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting. The Audit
Committee has recommended to the Board that McMillan Woods (Hong
Kong) CPA Limited be re-appointed as the auditor of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation of the
Group’s financial statements to give a true and fair view. The
responsibilities of auditor in respect of the financial statements are set out
in the report of the auditor forming part of this Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Group emphasises the importance of a sound internal control system
which is also indispensable for mitigating the Group’s key risk exposures.
The Group’s system of internal control is designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and to
manage and eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and fulfiment
of the business objectives. The internal control system is reviewed on an
ongoing basis by the Board in order to make it practical and effective in
providing reasonable assurance in relation to protection of material assets
and Shareholders’ interests. During the year under review, McMillan
Woods Corporate Service Limited has reviewed the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and has provided written reports to
the Audit Committee.
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The Group has adopted a three-tier risk management approach to
identify, assess and manage different types of risks. At the first line of
defence, business units are responsible for identifying, assessing and
monitoring risk associated with each business or transaction. The
management, as the second line of defence, defines rule sets and
models, provide technical support, develops new system and oversees
portfolio management. It ensures risks are within acceptable range and
that the first line of defence is effective. As the final line of defence,
McMillan Woods Corporate Service Limited assists the Audit Committee
to review the first and second lines of defence.

The Group is committed to the identification, evaluation and management
of risks associated with its business activities through ongoing
assessment of a risk register, by considering the likelihood and impact of
each identified risk. The Group has implemented an effective control
system which includes a defined management structure with limits of
authority, a sound management system and periodic review of the
Group’s performance by the Audit Committee and the Board.

The Group regards periodic review of internal control system as an
important part of the Board’s oversight function. The Group has not set
up an internal audit function, however, the Group has engaged an
external consultant, McMillan Woods Corporate Service Limited, to
conduct review on the internal control system of the Group. The review
shall be conducted once every year. During the year ended 31 March
2020, a review has been conducted and the Directors considered the
internal control system of the Group to be effective and adequate.

Through the Audit Committee, the Board has conducted annual review of
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems for the year ended 31 March 2020, covering the material
financial, operational and compliance controls, which are considered
effective and adequate.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the adequacy of resources,

qualifications and experience, training and budget of the accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions on an annual basis.
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INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company assesses the likely impact of any unexpected and
significant event that may impact the price of the shares of the Company
or their trading volume and decides whether the relevant information is
considered inside information and needs to be disclosed as soon as
reasonably practicable pursuant to Rules 17.10 and 17.11 of the GEM
Listing Rules and the Inside Information Provisions under Part XIVA of the
SFO. The executive Directors have responsibility for approving certain
announcements and/or circulars to be issued by the Company under
powers delegated by the Board from time to time.

The Company has put in place procedures on handling and dissemination
of inside information in a timely manner in such a way so as not to place
any person in a privileged dealing position and to allow time for the
market to price the listed securities of the Company with the latest
available information. The Company has appropriate internal control and
reporting systems to identify and assess potential inside information.
Dissemination of inside information of the Company shall be conducted
by publishing the relevant information on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company, according to the requirements of the GEM
Listing Rules.

COMPANY SECRETARY

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company Secretary was Mr.
Chou Chiu Ho.

Details of backgrounds and qualification of the Company Secretary are
set out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

A written record had been received by the Company from Mr. Chou Chiu
Ho confirming that he took not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the year ended 31 March 2020. The Company is of the
view that Mr. Chou has complied with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS TO CONVENE
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

In order to safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at Shareholders’ meetings on each substantial
issue, including the election of individual Directors, for Shareholders’
consideration and voting.
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The following procedures for Shareholders of the Company to convene
an extraordinary general meeting are subject to the Articles, and the
applicable legislation and regulation, in particular the GEM Listing Rules:

(i) any one or more Shareholders of the Company holding at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company (the “Eligible Shareholder(s)”) carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”),
to require an extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”) to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles; and

(ii) if within 21 days of the deposit of the requisition, the Board fails to
proceed to convene such EGM, the requisitionist(s) himself/
themselves may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES TO THE
BOARD

Apart from sending email to ir@primeintelligence.com.hk, Shareholders
may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board by addressing them
to the headquarter and principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong at Unit A, 6/F, TLP132, Nos. 132-134 Tai Lin Pai Road, Kwai
Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong, by post or by fax to (852) 2991
1110, for the attention of the Company Secretary.

DIVIDEND POLICY
The Company has adopted a dividend policy, a summary of which is
disclosed as below.

Any amount of dividends of the Company will be at the discretion of the
Directors and will depend on, among other things, the Company’s trading
results, cash flows and financial condition as well as operating and capital
requirements. Any declaration and payment as well as the amount of
dividends will be subject to the Company’s constitutional documents and
the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands, including the approval of Shareholders.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS’
MEETINGS

Pursuant to the Articles, Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may
by means of requisition convene an EGM following the procedures set out
above.

AMENDMENTS TO CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
Since the date of Listing up to 31 March 2020, there was no significant
change in the Company’s memorandum and the Articles.
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The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the
principal activities principal subsidiaries are set out in note 34 to the
financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of
the Group’s principal activities during the year.

The analysis of geographical locations of the Group for the year is set out
in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 March 2020 are set out in
note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business during the year and analysis of the
Group’s performance using financial key performance indicators and
prospects of the Group’s business are provided in the sections headed
“Chairman’s Statement” on pages 5 to 6 and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 7 to 14 of the annual report. The discussion forms
part of this Director’s report.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
Details of segment reporting are set out in note 7 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020 and the state
of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 72 to 164.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2020.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the “Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity” and note 32 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
The Company’s reserve available for distribution as at 31 March 2020
was approximately HK$57.9 million.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and
senior management arising out of corporate activities. The permitted
indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required
by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) when the Directors’ report prepared by the Directors is
approved in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles and association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 164 of the annual report.

PURCHASES, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 March 2020.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yuen Kwok Wai, Tony (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Yuen Mei Ling, Pauline

Ms. Sun Ngai Chu, Danielle

Mr. Mui Pak Kuen (Redesignated from an independent
non-executive Director to an executive Director on 2 March 2020)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Yam Chiu Fan, Joseph

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chung Billy

Mr. Hui Man Ho, Ivan

Mr. Poon Wai Hung Richard (Appointed on 2 March 2020)
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ROTATION OF DIRECTORS IN THE FORTHCOMING
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

In accordance with the Article 112 of the Articles, Mr. Poon Wai Hung
Richard shall hold office until the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election. Mr. Poon Wai
Hung Richard has agreed to offer himself for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. Pursuant to the
Article 108 of the Articles, Mr. Tony Yuen, Ms. Pauline Yuen, Ms. Danielle
Sun, Mr. Mui Pak Kuen and Mr. Joseph Yam shall retire from office as
Directors by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr. Tony
Yuen, Ms. Pauline Yuen, Ms. Danielle Sun, Mr. Mui Pak Kuen and Mr.
Joseph Yam, being eligible, have agreed to offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS OF
APPOINTMENT

Mr. Tony Yuen, Ms. Pauline Yuen, Ms. Danielle Sun have entered into a
service agreement with our Company for an initial term of three years with
effect from the 14 February 2018 and Mr. Mui Pak Kuen has entered into
a service agreement with our Company for an initial term of three years
with effect from the 2 March 2020, which will continue thereafter until
terminated by not less than three months’ prior notice in writing.

The non-executive Director has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for an initial term of three years with effect from the 14
February 2018, which will continue thereafter until terminated by not less
than three months’ prior notice in writing.

Mr. Chung Billy and Mr. Hui Man Ho, Ivan are appointed for an initial term
of three years with effect from 14 February 2018 and Mr. Poon Wai Hung
Richard is appointed for an initial term of three years with effect from 2
March 2020, which will continue thereafter until terminated by not less
than three months’ prior notice in writing.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS
THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE
COMPANY’S BUSINESS

Save for disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements, no
significant transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company’s subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the
Group are set out on pages 15 to 22 of the annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five individuals with highest
emoluments are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME
Details of the retirement benefit scheme of the Group are set out in note
16 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR
ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at

31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of the Directors

and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO, which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions in which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or

which

were required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered in

the register referred to therein, or which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of

ESERBRETRAEREAQATEMEEEE
MR - HEROREEENESRAR

R2020F3A31 B ARG EERFETHRAERA
AR EAA AR EE (F & RES R HE RO E XV 3P
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BIEGEM E BB 5.46 = 5.67 IFBME KA 7 M B
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the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:

Long positions
Ordinary shares of the Company

Percentage of

Number of the Company’s

shares issued share

Name Capacity and nature of interest (note 1) capital

R EE EARDE D BT

i B RERMEE (Mzt1) BAEZEDL
Mr. Yuen Kwok Wai, Tony (“Mr. Tony Yuen”) Interest of controlled corporation

(note 2) 366,000,000 (L) 45.75%

BrBlfE e & ([ L] (Mit2) AR

Ms. Yuen Mei Ling, Pauline (“Ms. Pauline Yuen”) Interest of controlled corporation

(note 2) 366,000,000 (L) 45.75%

it ([EXrt ) (AiF2)

REHDEE RS

Notes:

1.

The letter “L” denotes a long position in the shareholder’s interest in the
share capital of the Company.

2. Delighting View directly holds 366,000,000 Shares. As Delighting View is
beneficially owned as to 85% and 15% by Mr. Tony Yuen and Ms. Pauline
Yuen respectively and Mr. Tony Yuen and Ms. Pauline Yuen are parties
acting in concert, each of Mr. Tony Yuen and Ms. Pauline Yuen is deemed
to be interested in all the Share held by Delighting View under the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this Report, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company or their associates (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any interests or short positions in
any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 ad 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which each of them has taken or deemed to be taken
under the provisions of the SFO); or which were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered into the register referred to therein;
or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 and 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 March 2020, so far as is known to the Directors, the following
persons, not being Directors or chief executive of the Company had, or
were deemed to have, interests or short position in the shares or
underlying shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO; or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO; or who is directly or indirectly, to be interested in
5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the Company:

Long positions
Ordinary shares of the Company

B XTI RARSEAH - SIBEARREERE
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AR REEMAREE (EERES B HRDIEXV
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7 M BN E (G DI 55 352 1578 FC 8 % IR I A48 & "e i A
RmR R - HIRBGEM E TR B E5.46 £5.671%A
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HO R 28 JOK
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NARRABFEENERSKAR AR SRAA AR
BES LR RGIEIB6IRMTFESCMONERIAR
N EESEEEAMFEANRERER TEREARRA
IR A LR EME AR AN E 5% A L

3 5
IS mp

Percentage of

Number of the Company’s
shares issued share
Name Capacity and nature of interest (note 1) capital
RoO#E ERATRERT
g EE SORERME (Miz1) BEZEDHE
Delighting View (note 2) Beneficial owner 366,000,000 (L) 45.75%
Delighting View (/3£ 2) BEmEAA
Super Arena Limited (“Super Arena”) (note 3) Beneficial owner 100,000,000 (L) 12.5%
Super Arena Limited ([ Super Arena ) (f1:£3) EnEAA
Mr. Kor Sing Mung, Michael (“Mr. Kor”) (note 3) Interest of controlled corporation 100,000,000 (L) 12.5%
Kor Sing Mung, Michael 564 ([Kor 4 |) (A7 3) 2k @R
EZ A E AR AR / F2020 65
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Notes:

1. The letter “L” denotes a long position in the shareholder’s interest in the
share capital of the Company.

2. As Delighting View is beneficially owned as to 85% and 15% by Mr. Tony
Yuen and Ms. Pauline Yuen respectively and Mr. Tony Yuen and Ms. Pauline
Yuen are parties acting in concert, each of Mr. Tony Yuen and Ms. Pauline
Yuen is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Delighting View
under the SFO.

3. Super Arena directly holds 100,000,000 Shares. As Super Arena is
beneficially owned as to 70% by Mr. Kor, Mr. Kor is deemed to be interested
in all the Shares held by Super Arena under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this Report, the Directors are
not aware of any other person, other than Directors and the chief
executive of the Company who had, or was deemed to have, interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO; or who is directly or indirectly, to be interested in 5% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of the Company or options in respect
of such share capital.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the paragraphs headed “DIRECTORS’ AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS” and “SHARE
OPTION SCHEME” in this report, and save for the reorganisation and the
capitalisation issue as explained in the Prospectus, at no time during the
year ended 31 March 2020 was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries
or its parent company a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
and chief executives (including their respective spouse and children under
18 years of age) to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any of its
associated corporation.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Scheme was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed by the
Company’s Shareholders on 18 January 2018 for the primary purpose is
to attract, retain and motivate talented participants, to strive for future
developments and expansion of the Group. Eligible participants of the
Scheme include any employees, any executives, non-executive Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors), advisers, consultants of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries.
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The Scheme will remain valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on the date on which the Scheme is adopted, after which
no further share options will be granted but the provisions of the Scheme
shall in all other respects remain in full force and effect and share options
which are granted during the life of the Scheme may continue to be
exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue. The principal terms of
which were summarised in the paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme”
in Appendix IV to the Prospectus. No share option has been granted
under the Scheme since its adoption.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save and except for the Scheme as disclosed in the paragraph headed
“SHARE OPTION SCHEME” above, no equity-linked agreement that (i)
will or may result in the Company issuing shares or (ii) requires the
Company to enter into any agreement that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares, was entered into by the Company during the
year ended 31 March 2020 or subsisted at the end of the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS FTEEFRMLER
Sales Purchases
HE 231
The largest customer BREP 9.1% N/A T3 A
Five largest customers in aggregate hREF 5T 32.0% N/A T i A
The largest supplier BAHEER N/A T~ A 60.5%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate A A EEAR N/A A3 78.1%

None of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had any interest in the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2020, to the best of knowledge of the
Directors, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a significant impact
on the businesses and operations of the Group.

DISCLOSURES UNDER RULES 17.22 TO 17.24 OF THE
GEM LISTING RULES

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had no circumstances which would give
rise to a disclosure obligation under Rules 17.22 to 17.24 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND KEY RELATIONSHIP
WITH EMPLOYEES

Discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and key relationship
with employees is set out in the section headed “ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT” from pages 23 to 38 of this
report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from
each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to the
requirement of Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company
considers all independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Details of the related party transactions of the Group are set out in note
38 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 20 June 2018, SE Engineering, being an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a tenancy agreement (as tenant)
with Global Technology Corporation Limited (as landlord) (“Global
Technology”). Global Technology was owned as to approximately
28.0%, 28.0%, 5.0% and 9.0% by Mr. Yuen Jackson Kwok Leung (“Mr.
Jackson Yuen”), Mr. Tony Yuen, Ms. Pauline Yuen and Ms. Danielle Sun
respectively. Mr. Jackson Yuen is the elder brother of Ms. Pauline Yuen
and Mr. Tony Yuen who are Controlling Shareholders and executive
Directors. Since Mr. Tony Yuen, Ms. Pauline Yuen and Mr. Jackson Yuen
are “family members” as defined in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules
and they together owned over 50% of the total issued share capital of
Global Technology, Global Technology is an associate of Mr. Tony Yuen
and Ms. Pauline Yuen pursuant to Rule 20.10(2)(b) of the GEM Listing
Rules. Details of the above tenancy agreement of the Group are set out in
note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.
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COMPETING INTERESTS

During the year ended 31 March 2020, none of the Directors, the
Controlling Shareholders and their respective associates (as defined in the
GEM Listing Rules) as at 31 March 2020 had any interest in any business
which competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group or any other conflicts of interest with the Group.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of Mr. Tony Yuen, Ms. Pauline Yuen and Delighting View (the
“Covenantors” or each, a “Covenantor”), being the Controlling
Shareholders, has entered into the deed of non-competition (the “Deed
of Non-competition”) pursuant to which each of the Covenantors has,
among other things, irrevocably and unconditionally undertaken with the
Company (for itself and as trustee for its subsidiaries), on a joint and
several basis, that at any time during the period commencing on the date
of Listing and expiring on the earlier of (i) the date upon which the Shares
cease to be listed on the Stock Exchange; or (i) the date upon which the
Covenantors and their close associates cease to own 30% or more of the
then issued share capital of the Company directly or indirectly, such
Covenantor shall not, and shall procure that neither their respective close
associates nor companies controlled by the Covenantors (other than the
members of the Group) will (i) directly or indirectly, be interested in or
involved in or engaged in or acquire or hold any right or interest (in each
case whether as a director or shareholder (other than being a director or
shareholder of any member of the Group)) in any form of business,
including but not limited to any joint venture, alliance, cooperation,
partnership which competes or is likely to compete directly or indirectly
with the Group’s business in any area in which the Group carries or may
carry on business (the “Restricted Activity”) from time to time; nor
provide support in any form to persons other than the members of the
Group to engage in business that constitutes or may constitute direct or
indirect competition with the businesses that the Group is currently and
from time to time carrying on; (ii) solicit any existing employee of the
Group for employment by him/her/it or his/her/its close associates or
companies controlled by him/her/it; and (i) without the consent of the
Company, make use of any information pertaining to the business of the
Group which may have come to his/her/its knowledge for any purpose of
engaging, investing or participating in any Restricted Activity. Such non-
competition undertaking does not apply to holding shares of a company
which conducts or is engaged in any Restricted Activity provided that,
such shares are listed on a recognised stock exchange and: (a) the total
number of the shares held by the Covenantors and/or their respective
close associates (in aggregate) does not amount to more than 5% of the
issued shares of such company; and (b) the Covenantors and/or their
respective close associates are not entitled to appoint a majority of the
directors or management of that company. Details of the Deed of Non-
competition have been disclosed in the section headed “Relationship with
the Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus.
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The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the annual
confirmation as part of the annual review process. In determining whether
the Covenantors had fully complied with the Deed of Non-competition for
the year ended 31 March 2020, the independent non-executive Directors
noted that (a) the Covenantors declared that they had fully complied with
the Deed of Non-competition for the year ended 31 March 2020; (b) no
new competing business was reported by any Covenantor for the year
ended 31 March 2020, and (c) there was no particular situation rendering
the full compliance of the Deed of Non-competition being questionable. In
view of the above, the independent non-executive Directors confirmed
that the Deed of Non-competition was complied with by all Covenantors
for the year ended 31 March 2020.

On 30 November 2015, Mr. Jackson Yuen has also entered into a deed
of non-competition with the Company, pursuant to which Mr. Jackson
Yuen has made similar undertakings to the Company as those given by
the Controlling Shareholders under the Deed of Non-competition.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total
issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company’s corporate governance report is set out on pages 39 to
59 of this annual report.

INTERESTS OF THE COMPLIANCE ADVISER

As at the date of this annual report, save and except for (i) the
participation of Ample Capital Limited (the “Compliance Adviser”) as the
sponsor and Ample Orient Capital Limited as one of the underwriters and
joint lead managers in relation to the Listing; and (ii) the compliance
adviser’s agreement entered into between the Company and the
Compliance Adviser dated 25 January 2018, neither the Compliance
Adviser, nor any of its directors, employees or close associates (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any interests in the securities of the
Company or any other companies of the Group (including options or
rights to subscribe for such securities) which is required to be notified to
the Company pursuant to Rule 6A.32 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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AUDITOR

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited has been appointed as the
auditor of the Company following the resignation of World Link CPA
Limited due to its reorganisation under which the audit engagement
director and the audit engagement team joined another professional
accounting firm with effect from 10 February 2020 and McMillan Woods
(Hong Kong) CPA Limited was appointed to fill the casual vacancy. A
resolution to re-appoint McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited as
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2020 AGM will be held at Unit A, 12th Floor, Mai Sik Industrial
Building, 1-11 Kwai Ting Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong
on Monday, 10 August 2020 at 11:00 a.m. and a notice of the 2020 AGM
will be published and despatched in due course.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Yuen Kwok Wai, Tony
Chairman

Hong Kong
22 June 2020

[ELERERRBEAR AR / £32020
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M McMillanWoods

Professionalism at the forefront
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

PRIME INTELLIGENCE SOLUTIONS GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Prime
Intelligence Solutions Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 79 to 163, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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BB AR S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, AR ERERARETEME LU Y AR S IE
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial HxmEE S AEEHWEIE - ZEEENE S E LS

BREXEE

A7

statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the = gimspEp RS ERESE  TES el

Contgxt of gur audit oflthe consolidated financial statemen.ts as a whole, EEEPMBTMES - BEDET)TENEE R
anq |In forming our opinion thereon, and we do Inot prlowde a separate B 5 eI IE R B B A A R i B R A
opinion on these matters. We have determined (i) allowance for
inventories; and (ii) impairment of trade receivables to be the key audit
matters to be communicated in our report:

Key Audit Matter
BRERER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EEEBERPNAEEERERER

)
)

Allowance for inventories

FERARE

Refer to significant accounting policies in note 4(f), critical
judgement and estimates in note 5(c) and its relevant
disclosures in note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BB E B HRAM T 40 T ERTHE - 12T 5(c) B
BT R A 5T A K Y 77 20 B 1B BA 755 5 S 1E ©

The Group had inventories with net carrying amount of
approximately HK$20,943,000 as at 31 March 2020 (after
related allowance of approximately HK$753,000 provided
as at 31 March 2020). The carrying amount of inventories
contributed a significant part (20.4%) of the Group’s total
assets as at 31 March 2020.

202053 A31H EHXEERE K@ FED
20,943,000 TLEV 17 & (AR 72 20204 3 A 31 HEHE
EIE R (40 753,000/ %) - FEMEREMEN %
E 202063 H31 HHWEEBE—KRED (20.4%) °

The Group operates in an industry where technological
development may significantly affect the valuation of
inventories as its products would become slow-moving
or obsolete when products with new technology emerge.
R BEREQEMETENLE  MRERSHEE
HEELEREYE  BHHMREMER  HELKFHE

Sk B IS BT

The estimation of the net realisable value of these
inventories requires management to make judgements
based on these inventories’ ages, obsolescence, future
usage plan, estimated net selling prices as well as
inventory disposal plans. Actual sales or usages are likely
to be different from those estimated or forecast since
anticipated events sometimes do not occur as expected
and unforeseen events may arise, and their impact on
estimates and forecasts may be material.
EREERENZEFENRE  RERE - KRR
B EEOFEEUNREFE RS EIEL HE - AR Z
EEFRNAERFE - ERHESARRAIGEEZEG
FTEIRRIANR - ThRRIERT F AR AR AR B A K
AIBE B A TEAT AN AT - T H AT RIERI 2 A
BEEEK o

EL BRI EEBRAT / 352020

Our procedure in relation to net realisable value determination as
well as impairment assessment of inventories carried out by the
management included:
EEEHBEREERRNERFAET U RFERETHH
TP eE

— Reviewing the ageing of inventory;
- BEREERIK:

— Identifying and assessing aged and obsolete items of
inventory while attending the physical inventory count;
— ZHEBERTFEREN > FPINAEZEMREFEREE

—  Assessing the Group’s internal control over the inventory
provision in particular the Group’s policy on allowance for
slow-moving and obsolete inventories;

— Mk ESEYUEEEENADNES - LHE E5E
HRH R REFE O BBECR

—  Assessing the appropriateness and reasonableness of the
methodologies adopted by the management in
determining the net realisable value for those slow-moving
items of inventory; and

- AMEEREERMETAXSEAEFEREANERFENT
ENEEEREEMN Rk

— Challenging the appropriateness and reasonableness of
management’s assumption by performing sensitivity
analysis on possible future consumption/sales of slow-
moving items of inventory.

— FERHBHTEERMNEBTARIERE HERITHREE
ST HEEEENERNSETEREENE -
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Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

HREXEE EZEERPNMEEBRREREE
() Impairment of trade receivables
() E5EKRERBE
Refer to significant accounting policies in note 4(t), critical
judgement and estimates in note 5(d), financial risk
management in note 6(b) and its relevant disclosures in
note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.
FLMEAVBERERM T A0 T EGFTHOR - Mo AR
FUERT R AGF - I 6(0) B 765 LR B 3R DA R BT 5 21 B9 AR A 3%
FEEIE -
In practise, the Group would grant credit terms to its ~ Our audit procedures in relation to the impairment assessment
customers ranged between 30 to 90 days. The Group  of trade receivables included:
would perform periodic assessment on the impairmentas B % H#EE 5 B WFBERERHHNEZIEFBIE
well as recoverability of trade receivables by basing on
information including credit risk characteristics of each Evaluating the design, implementation and operating
customer, historical ageing and settlement records, effectiveness of key internal controls over credit control,
subsequent settlement status, expected timing and debt collection and estimate of ECL;
amount of recovering outstanding balances, and on- SHEEERES - WEER LRIEREEBEAF R
going trading relationships with the relevant customers Sl aaRET - BB RIEVERRL ;
and forward-looking information that may impact its
customers’ abilities to repay the outstanding trade Assessing the reasonableness of the Group’s ECL models
receivables in order to estimate the expected credit by examining the model input used by management to
losses (“ECL”) for the impairment assessment. form such judgements, including testing the accuracy of
ERE EXEgmAEPETI0EWANEE the historical default data, evaluating whether the historical
H. BXEEBRESEFNEERREE - BARR loss rates are appropriately adjusted based on current
MEEEREE - EBRAZERN - BRI E R E B EHD economic conditions variables and assumptions used in
KRR SEAREBAEAREPORBER SEEREELE each of the economic scenarios and their probability
HEFERHNAREREE FRBGENENNRTEEER weightings and assessing whether there was an indication
ZER - HEZEWFIERNRE R U e 1T E BRE of management bias when recognising loss allowances;
it - MAEDREE TR EEEE((FEREERED - FiBiRE B IR E R E A B R 8 = 8 A BUR T
it ERERBMEEEEEANGEN EPeFIR
Due to impairment of trade receivables under the ECL BERBAOSBENERYE  FHATEEXREEREER
model involved the use of significant management LER AR SEERSEEEBS TR &L
judgements and estimates, we considered this as a key R BETEEARE  RHEEAFREBREEER
audit matter. HREERERTAERS
EHRTEREEBEEEATHE S RWFIEREY RER
BERERBEBAE LG HEERRLTIREREZE
18 o
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Key Audit Matter
BEEZEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EEEERPNMEEBEREREE

- Reperforming the calculations in the ECL model;
—  E#ETRAGEEREANGH

—  Inspecting settlements after the financial year end relating
to the trade receivables as at 31 March 2020; and

—  REUBFEAEREREN2020F 3 A31 ANE S EIK
HRMNEEER : &

— Reviewing the disclosures made in the consolidated
financial statements in relation to the Group’s credit risk
exposure.

— EENTERGAEVBHRRTAELEH
[E R R R EEE K o

BEREREE

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other
Information comprises all of the information included in the Company’s
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

EXAREMEREERE - HWENRE EQFF
P BRAR S M IRER KB SRk T B B RS A S
HPTEEHYL

EEYHGRAUBHRRELNELLRRELMERRE
SN HEAER BEREMERARELER -

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our FEZEZGEAMKHEXNS  BEENS T AEEEM

responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so, consider
whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

EL BRI EEBRAT / 352020

B tMEEEMENRERESFBHRRAETEN
ERBREPETNEMFEEAEE  KUFFHEEX
R - ERNEFEHRITHIIE - MESR R EA
ARHREAERRL  EERARERFE - TSR
WA ERARSE
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our opinion is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and

to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lo Ka Ki

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number: PO6633

3/F., Winbase Centre
208 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

Hong Kong, 22 June 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

mEEEkEMAZEHIRER

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE2020F3 A1 HIEFE

2020 2019
2020 20194
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
K st FE T FAT
Revenue Uk % 8 50,842 50,878
Cost of sales and services rendered HE R RHRBK AR (26,264) (25,054)
Gross profit EF 24,578 25,824
Other income HAaA 9 891 702
Selling and distribution costs SEE R SR AR (5,141) (5,749
Administrative and other operating expenses 77k f& B b 48 4 fi 2 (23,095) (21,976)
Loss from operation REEEZBR (2,767) (1,199)
Finance costs BARSR AN 10 (209) (28)
Loss before tax BRBLATE 1B 11 (2,976) (1,227
Income tax expense FriSfim s 12 (402) (259)
Loss for the year attributable to RATESEE AES
equity owners of the Company FREE (3,378) (1,486)
Other comprehensive income FRAHEHMEZEWKE  HRHE
for the year, net of tax:
Item that may be reclassified AJREEF P EEEm 2 HE -
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating MEGINETSRS VIE R =58
foreign operations (418) (273)
Total comprehensive income AAFEEEEABGEEREZE
for the year attributable to W R
equity owners of the Company (3,796) (1,759)
Loss per share (HK cents) FREE B
— Basic and diluted — EARK#E 15 (0.42) (0.19)
FE 2245 46 1 B R 2 ) / 492020 79



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MBARRE

At 31 March 2020
1202063 31 H

2020 2019
2020 20194
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
K st THET FAT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENMERE 17 1,144 1,816
Right-of-use assets FREAE 18 1,399 -
Intangible assets EILEE 19 70 119
2,613 1,935
Current assets REVEE
Inventories FE 20 20,943 21,393
Trade receivables B 5 e EIE 21 8,333 9,691
Other receivables, prepayments and HabfEUGRIE - AN RERIES
deposits 22 2,839 2,706
Tax recoverable Al U Bl 18 2,643 2,531
Cash and bank balances e RIBITHE S 23 65,147 70,334
99,905 106,655
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables 2 5 ENIE 24 898 2,922
Other payables, deposits received and HuapENIE s EWigs REETEH
accrued expenses 25 4,270 5,538
Lease liabilities HEaE 26 1,804 -
Contract liabilities ABHBEE 27 5,191 5,066
Current tax liabilities BT IE A & = 67
12,163 13,593
Net current assets REBEEZE 87,742 93,062
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBER 90,355 94,997
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Lease liabilities HEsE 26 1,175 -
Contract liabilities aHEE 27 413 102
1,588 102
NET ASSETS EEFE 88,767 94,895
80 Prime Intelligence Solutions Group Limited / Annual Report 2020
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At 31 March 2020
202043 A31H

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

2020 2019
2020 20194
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
izt FET FHET

Capital and reserves BEARREE
Share capital &N 30 8,000 8,000
Reserves B 32 80,767 86,895
TOTAL EQUITY R 88,767 94,895

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 June

2020.

Yuen Kwok Wai, Tony
e 2 18

[ELERERRBEAR AR / £32020

R2020F 6 A 22 AEE S M EETIE -

Yuen Mei Ling, Pauline

e S5
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREER

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

ADRERERAEL
Foreign
currency
Share Share Merger Legal translation Retained Total Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits reserve equity
S R EE ARG EERE MRERE REEH BRE BER
(note 32(c)f)  (note 32(c)fi)) (note 32(c)fiii)) (note 32(c)(iv))
(B132320))  (W32320))  (Wia£320)) (Hi+32(c)iv)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET FEL TR T FEL FER TR
At 1 April 2018 R2018%F4 A1 8 8,000 51,682 17,079 12 2 22,040 90,815 98,815
Impact on initial application BERERBRUBRS
of HKFRS 15 EREAGRH T E - - - - - (2,161) (2,161) (2,161)
At 1 April 2018 (s restated) ®20184% 4 A1 B (KKEF) 8,000 51,682 17,079 12 2 19,879 88,654 96,654
Loss and total comprehensive FABEREE
income and changes in equity W BB R ERES
for the year - - - - (73) (1,486) (1,759) (1,759)
At 31 March 2019 and 201943 310
1 April 2019 201954 A1 H 8,000 51,682 17,079 12 ) 18,393 86,895 94,895
Impact on initial application BEREREBHBREES
of HKFRS 16 Fl6HyE - - - - - (2,332) (2,332 (2,332
At 1 April 2019 (as restated) 201944 A1 (BE5) 8,000 51,682 17,079 12 (271) 16,061 84,563 92,563
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FREER2ENEAE
income and changes in equity M RiEREH
for the year - - - - (418) (3,378) (3,796) (3,796)
At 31 March 2020 R202053A31H 8,000 51,682 17,079 12 (689) 12,683 80,767 88,767
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEEHERER

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3 A31 BHIEFE

2020 2019
2020 20194
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
HiaF FHT FHT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING BETHEESRE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax BREERTE 1B (2,976) (1,227)
Adjustments for: BATSEEL A
Interest income FBUA (811) (636)
Amortisation i3 49 49
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BENMRETE
equipment 742 957
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERREENE 1,611 -
Finance costs BB R AR 209 28
Impairment loss of trade receivables Z 5 e W B E 1R 162 178
Allowance for inventories FERE 220 386
Gain on disposals of property, HEYZE - BE R ERE
plant and equipment = (29)
Write off of property, plant and equipment — #fis&¥ % - E k& = 1
Operating loss before working capital LIEECEHRIKE
changes &8 (794) (293)
Increase in inventories FEHEM (385) (3,136)
Decrease in trade receivables B B EWEIER D 990 2,419
Increase in other receivables, HbEUGRIE - AN RIE
prepayments and deposits Kotz & 180 (238) (279)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables BHREMZIECRD), /1M (1,687) 620
Decrease in other payables, deposits HEMAHE  BliEE Rk
received and accrued expenses et BRI (1,237) (123)
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities EHa’EEN/ Chd) 436 (1,149)
Cash used in operations REFARS (2,915) (1,937)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BEREEFIEH (489) (3,442)
Macau Complementary Tax paid SRS (92) (28)
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEMNE (193) -
Interest paid BAFIE (16) (28)
Net cash used in operating activities &EEBFTRIR & 558 (3,705) (5,435)
7R M AR A F] / 4 42020 83



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE2020F3A31 HIEFE

2020 2019
2020 20194
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
K st FET FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING BRETHRSHRE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equipment B E ¥ % - = K& (92) (1,724)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEVE BEX
plant and equipment REBATSIE - 29
Interest received B UFE 811 636
Net cash from/(used in) investing activities & EENFTE,/(F1F) 4 %48 719 (1,059)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING BETHRESARE
ACTIVITIES
Import/export loans raised BEG#® HOER 1,585 508
Repayments of import/export loans & }aiﬁ/ HOER (1,585) (508)
Principal element of lease payments ERRAREE D (2,104) -
Net cash used in financing activities BB RENFT1SIR & R 58 (2,104) -
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRESEENRDF
EQUIVALENTS (5,090) (6,494)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes P S i3 B o) B 2 (97) ©)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FINRESRESEEY
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 70,334 76,837
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERNBESRESEEY
AT END OF YEAR 65,147 70,334
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH RERBESEEUNDHF
EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances RITRIRE 4 23 65,147 70,334
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Notes to the Financial Statements

P ISR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE2020F3 A1 HIEFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempt company with limited liability under the Companies Law (as
revised) of the Cayman Islands on 16 October 2015. The address
of its registered office is P.O. Box 1350, Clifton House, 75 Fort
Street, Grand Cayman, KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The address of
its principal place of business is located at Unit A, 6/F, TLP132,
Nos. 132-134 Tai Lin Pai Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories,
Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
since 14 February 2018 (the “Listing”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are sales of biometrics identification
devices and other devices and accessories and provision of
auxiliary and other services.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which in collective term includes Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“‘HKASs”)
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock
Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) and with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are discussed
below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 3 below provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

ZEEMREBARRAF / F#2020

—RER
ARAER2015F10 A 16 AR BEFEES A RLE(KE
B EREREIMK L AEREERAR - &
SEff 3% S5 R s uk A P.O. Box 1350, Clifton House,
75 Fort Street, Grand Cayman, KY1-1108, Cayman
Islands ° E 3 22 & 3¢ 30 B0 3 i 2 70 BB BT R 2
SEAEBEE 1832-134 5 TLP132 N IEAE AN A
BRHEB2018F 2 A 14 BBREBHERFHHE
PRAR (B AT]) GEM Em ([ £ D) »

ARAFR—HREZERAR - ENBARNEIE
EBREELEMREBENKENEMKE ME
o ARIRHECE M AR -
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WERAMBRRDIREEEVBREENTE
BRBHREER ) (BBt AE ((FEBEE
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RBEGXRF22ETERRIGRIIBERE -
REBRBNENE SHIREN T X ©

EREMAGDEME THI REEITZES
BHmELER  URAEEZEREAHHER
R R IR R o V)2 B A It S5 A BI P 5l 2K
BRAKERE A BT ST REAEREETIK
REPORUEFHAVBERRARKR - BEEH
BN T XHIFES ©

85



Notes to the Financial Statements

PSR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE2020F3 31 BIEFE

3.

86

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs

(@

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a new HKFRS, HKFRS 16 Leases,
and a number of amendments to HKFRSs that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the Group.

Except for HKFRS 16, none of the developments has had a
material effect on how the Group’s results and financial
position for the current or prior periods have been prepared
or presented. The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 supersedes HKAS 17 Leases, and the related
interpretations, HK(IFRIC) 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC) 15 Operating
Leases-Incentives and HK(SIC) 27 Evaluating the Substance
of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. HKFRS
16 introduced a single accounting model for lessees, which
requires a lessee to recognise a right-of-use asset and a
lease liability for all leases, except for leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.

Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify
leases as either operating or finance leases using similar
principles as in HKAS 17. Therefore, HKFRS 16 did not have
an impact or leases where the Group is the lessor. The lessor
accounting requirements are brought forward from HKAS 17
substantially unchanged.

HKFRS 16 also introduces additional qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to enable
users of the financial statements to assess the effect that
leases have on the financial position, financial performance
and cash flows of an entity.

3.

AR RS B AN BREEL

(a)

FERTET R ARMEFT & B I 5 4R 5 2 B
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2o REEWARNA G HREEBERE
R FFT B2 RE o

BB EERIE 16 E
BEMBMELDNF16RMRABEEGAE
A7 REER A RE BB (R
BaEREZEe) RBEIRETRH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

P ISR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3 A31 BHIEFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs

(continued)

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 as from 1 April
2019. The Group has elected to use the modified
retrospective approach and has therefore recognised the
cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment to the
opening balance of equity at 1 April 2019. Comparative
information has not been restated and continues to be

reported under HKAS 17.

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to
previous accounting policies and the transition options

applied are set out below:

(@  New definition of a lease

The change in the definition of a lease mainly relates to
the concept of control. HKFRS 16 defines a lease on
the basis of whether a customer controls the use of an
identified asset for a period of time, which may be
determined by a defined amount of use. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the right to
direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

The Group applies the new definition of a lease in
HKFRS 16 only to contracts that were entered into or
changed on or after 1 April 2019. For contracts entered
into before 1 April 2019, the Group has used the
transitional practical expedient to grandfather the
previous assessment of which existing arrangements
are or contain leases. Accordingly, contracts that were
previously assessed as leases under HKAS 17
continue to be accounted for as leases under HKFRS
16 and contracts previously assessed as non-lease
service arrangements continue to be accounted for as

executory contracts.

EL BRI EEBRAT / 352020
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PSR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

3.

88

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
(continued)

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)
(b)  Lessee accounting and transitional impact

HKFRS 16 eliminates the requirement for a lessee to
classify leases as either operating leases or finance
leases, as was previously required by HKAS 17.
Instead, the Group is required to capitalise all leases
when it is the lessee, including leases previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17, other
than those short-term leases and leases of low-value

assets which are exempt.

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases
previously classified as operating leases, the Group
has applied the incremental borrowing rates of the
relevant group entities at the date of initial application.
The weighted average incremental borrowing rate

applied is 5%.

To ease the transition to HKFRS 16, the Group applied
the following recognition exemption and practical
expedients at the date of initial application of HKFRS

16:

(i) elected not to apply the requirements of HKFRS
16 in respect of the recognition of lease liabilities
and right-of-use assets to leases for which the
remaining lease term ends within 12 months
from the date of initial application of HKFRS 16,
i.e. where the lease term ends on or before 31

March 2020;

(i)  applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with a similar remaining terms for similar
class of underlying assets in a similar economic
environment. Specifically, discount rate for
certain leases of leasehold lands and properties

was determined on a portfolio basis;

3. BRMFITREETERMBREREL (K
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Notes to the Financial Statements

P ISR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3 A31 BHIEFE

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
(continued)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs (continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

(@)

(b)

Lessee accounting and transitional impact (continued)

(i) used hindsight based on facts and
circumstances as at date of initial application in
determining the lease term for the Group’s
leases with extension options;

(iv)  excluded initial direct costs from measuring the
right-of-use assets at the date of initial
application; and

(v)  relied on the assessment of whether leases are
onerous by applying HKAS 37 as an alternative
to an impairment review.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-
of-use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group
first determines whether the tax deductions are
attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities separately. Temporary
differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised at initial recognition and
over the lease terms due to application of the initial
recognition exemption.

ZEEMREBARRAF / F#2020
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PSR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
(continued)

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (continued) (a)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

(b)  Lessee accounting and transitional impact (continued) (o)
The following table reconciles the operating lease
commitments as at 31 March 2019 to the opening

3. BRMFITREETERMBREREL (K

R REIET BB IERELER (F
BB HHREERFE 165 & (48)
ARAGHEBEEFERBELE(E)
TRE2019F3ANBNEEHE
AMEE2019F 4 A1 BHERNAES

balance for lease liabilities recognised as at 1 April BEEVEREER -
2019:
HK$’000
FAET
Operating lease commitments as at 20194 3 A 31 B & EFdE
31 March 2019 disclosed in note 39 to the (RERE BRI T 39 1R ER)
consolidated financial statements 4,531
Less: commitments relating to lease exempt o BUERA B T AR EEREN
from capitalisation: AHE
— short-term leases and leases of — EHHEREKEEEEMRE
low-value assets (700)
3,831
Less: total future interest expenses B RIRF B X e (270)
Present value of remaining lease payments, FIeAT E R IRE (RIS E B HRFIE
discounted using the incremental borrowing ER20195 4 A1 BERNEESE
rate and lease liabilities recognised as at BLIR)
1 April 2019 3,561
Of which: Hep:
Current lease liabilities REBHESRE 1,443
Non-current lease liabilities FRBHEEE 2,118
3,561
The right-of-use assets in relation to leases previously BAER D EAKEHENHEBHNERAEEE
classified as operating leases have been recognised at RERFHHREEAERANCBEESNSER
an amount equal to the amount recognised for the R WiE2019F 3 A 31 Béra MBS R NiER
remaining lease liabilities, adjusted by the amount of Mz ERENTENSEFEEN RS T UH
any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that o

lease recognised in the statement of consolidated

financial position at 31 March 2019.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

P ISR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3 A31 BHIEFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs 3. BRI REBITEBMBREER (H)

(continued)

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (continued) (a) ERFTTREBTIEEMEREER (E

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued) BB EREENE165HE (8)

(b)  Lessee accounting and transitional impact (continued) ) FAEASHEEERBELE(E)
The following table summaries the impacts of the initial TRBAMN 20195 4 A1 B & REH
adoption of HKFRS 16 on the Group’s consolidated BEMBRELEUNE 165K EAER
statement of financial position as at 1 April 2019: AR RRNTE
Line items in the Impairment
consolidated statement losses
of financial position Carrying recognised Carrying
impacted by the adoption amounts as at Recognition  on right-of-use amounts as at
of HKFRS 16 31 March 2019 of lease assets 1 April 2019
REMNE B B REER #2019 FREEEN 20194
Z16RTEM 3A31 B PR 4A188
GAUBRRRER RAEE HERER REEE REE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FHT FHT FHT

Right-of-use assets EREAE 3,510 (2,225) 1,285
Other receivables, Hft fEUFRIE

prepayments and deposits B R ES 2,706 (56) - 2,650

Lease liabilities HEBE 3,561 - 3,561

(c) Impact of the financial results and cash flows of the

Group

After the initial recognition of right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019, the Group as a
lessee is required to recognise interest expense
accrued on the outstanding balance of the lease
liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset,
instead of the previous policy of recognising rental
expenses incurred under operating leases on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. This results in a
positive impact on the reported loss from operations in
the Group’s consolidated statement of profit or loss, as
compared to the results if HKAS 17 had been applied
during the year.

EL BRI EEBRAT / 352020
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PSR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

3.

92

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
(continued)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs (continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

(@

(©

Impact of the financial results and cash flows of the
Group (continued)

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, the Group
as a lessee is required to split rentals paid under
capitalised leases into their principal element and
interest element (note 35(b)). These elements are
classified as financing cash outflows and operating
cash outflows respectively. Although total cash flows
are unaffected, the adoption of HKFRS 16 therefore
results in a significant change in presentation of cash
flows within the statement of cash flows.

The following tables give an indication of the estimated
impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 on the Group’s
financial result and cash flows for the year ended 31
March 2020, by adjusting the amounts reported under
HKFRS 16 in these consolidated financial statements
to compute estimates of the hypothetical amounts that
would have been recognised under HKAS 17 if this
superseded standard had continued to apply in 2020
instead of HKFRS 16, and by comparing these
hypothetical amounts for 2020 with the actual 2019
corresponding amounts which were prepared under
HKAS 17.

3. BRMFITREETERMBREREL (K

(@) ERFITREETEBIBREEL(E

BB IR EERE 1655 E (B)

© AEEFBEERREARENTE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

P ISR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE2020F3 A1 HIEFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs 3. BHMFHITIRKETEBMBEHREER (F)
(continued)
(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (continued) (@) EAFITRKETEBIEHRSEER(E)
HKFRS 16 Leases (continued) BB HEERIE 16 9 & (&)
() Impact of the financial results and cash flows of the ) FTEEVBXERAERENTE
Group (continued) (%)
2020 2019
20205 20194
Deduct:
Estimated
amounts
Add back: related to Hypothetical Compared
Amounts HKFRS 16 operating amounts to amounts
reported depreciation lease as if for 2020 reported for
under and interest  under HKAS 17 as if under 2019 under
HKFRS 16 expense (note 1) HKAS 17 HKAS 17
i :
EREEHEN
RERE mE:  fEEEECEN  200EEREE  H019FRE
B G ERAHRE REEEET  (BUREEH FheEN
F16R2HRY ERIE165 EREITH BHEA  F17TRERY
¢8 FERASEx B (1) B1THHE) Ex iy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHR FET TR TAL

Financial result for the year ~ S AE Bo KR EEE

ended 31 March 2020 E165EHEN

impacted by the adoption ~ #Z 2020538318

of HKFRS 16: LEENHBES:
Loss from operation RELEER (2,767) 1,611 (2,297) (3,453) (1,199)
Finance costs B (209) 193 = (16) (28)
Loss before tax BREAER (2,976) 1,804 (2,297) (3,469) (1,227)
Loss for the year ERER (3,378) 1,804 (2,207) (3,871) (1,486)
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs 3.
(continued)
(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (continued) FERFTE] RAETT BB MR EER (&)
HKFRS 16 Leases (continued) BB HEERIE 16 9 & ()
() Impact of the financial results and cash flows of the ) FTEEVBXERAERENTE

BRANHTR] RASRT B A M B EER (&)

(@

94

Group (continued)

(%)

2020 2019
2020 £F 20194
Estimated
amounts
related to
operating  Hypothetical Compared
Amounts leases amounts to amounts
reported as if under for 2020 reported for
under HKAS 17 as if under 2019 under
HKFRS 16 (note 1) HKAS 17 HKAS 17
FEKEHEN
REFEHYE FEHEEW 2020 F 1R H120194F
HEEE REFBET 2FCHEWRE REEBEH
F1655 ERIE178: BB GER ZRIFAT 5
EHNSE  FE)(KEF1) BATHAE) EHNETUR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT TERT TERT TET
Line items in the TRMEBUERE
statement of cash flows %B|E 165 LM
for year ended 31 March #,F2020 &
2020 impacted by the 3AS1HLEE
adoption of HKFRS 16: B &HEXER !
Cash used in operations REFBRE (2,915) (2,297) (5,212) (1,937)
Interest element of [EANEiiEA: kiR o
lease rentals paid (193) 193 - -
Net cash used in RETBRARSTE
operating activities (3,705) (2,104) (5,809) (5,435)
Capital element of lease [EAREiika:ok-¥:N:iFa
rentals paid (2,104) 2,104 - -
Net cash used in METBRARSTE
financing activities (2,104) 2,104 - -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE2020F3 A1 HIEFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
(continued)

(@)

(b)

3. HEMHFITREBITEEMBREER (K)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs (continued) (a) FEAFEIRLEFTEBIERSELER (E)
HKFRS 16 Leases (continued) BB EREENFE 165 HE (8)
() Impact of the financial results and cash flows of the © ~AEEMBEEERASRENTE
Group (continued) (%)
Note 1: The “estimated amounts related to operating leases” BaE1 T EBREMENGE 5] gm
is an estimate of the amounts of the cash flows in TESBERAKEHENHERR
2020 that relate to leases which would have been #2020 F IR & 7t £ & 7Bl aT (1
classified as operating leases, if HKAS 17 had still EBGETEAFEA7H N 2020F
applied in 2020. This estimate assumes that there TREA - A BREASEE
were no difference between rentals and cash flows emEzHTEER - B 2020
and that all of the new leases entered into in 2020 FRIHMBEHAERERES
would have been classified as operating leases under BEFTERET RO EALEM
HKAS 17, if HKAS 17 had still applied in 2020. Any E(WMEBGFEIBEITHR
potential net tax effect is ignored. 2020 FARIEA o EBIERE
BT BTG o
New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet (b) CREMENEKERNIHTREETEB
effective B RS A
The Group has not early applied new and revised HKFRSs AR T A BEMER2019F4
that have been issued but are not yet effective for the A1 B R a 0 I ER R 1 R A R R AT AT
financial year beginning 1 April 2019. These new and revised ERTEBHBMELRA  ZHFMFT REE
HKFRSs include the following which may be relevant to the S BB EMELER BB T AT RAE
Group. EHAMNEE -
Effective for
accounting
periods beginning
on or after
RIELBHESR 2%
MmN E TR EX
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business 1 January 2020
EEMBREERE I (BRIA) EBNTEE 202041 A1H
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material 1 January 2020
BERGHEAE 1R LREAGERE ST (BT AR) EXNER 20201 A1H
Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform 1 January 2020
BN BEMEEANE O - B ERIFE 95 BBV IEMEERE 79 (7] AR) 20201 H1H

AEE=le

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards is
expected to be in the period of initial application. So far the
Group has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to
have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

EL BRI EEBRAT / 352020

88 R TS 1 45 5T B3 AT B3 47
SERNHNERYE - AEEES N
B ARMZEEATA T H A B 5
KEREAYE -
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4.

96

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in note 5.

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these financial statements are set out below.

(@) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31 March. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting year as that of the Company.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. The Group has power over an entity
when the Group has existing rights that give it the current
ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities that
significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties, to determine whether it has control. A potential voting
right is considered only if the holder has the practical ability to
exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains and continue to be consolidated until the date
when such control ceases.

TEERHBE
HZERAUBWMRDRELRAEGIREL

RENEEEMBMERNFBRRARAE
TRRE A TEREEERERAASEE
TR AR PR R o F RS E H B e
BEMNHE UGV BRREEAZENR
BN AEFTEV BB S P IREE

EREZSH BRI EAN T ES SRR
ZHINT ©

(a) #HEER%E
RAENBRERFBEARRILEMNBARE
Z3ABI BN EHRE - B R RO
BT EAR BRI NRE FERE -
AR M S BRI ® IR &I
RREAEBRAOBE B - HEAF
EASEEHNER EAEEBASH
HE@mAWED] 2 LR ER L ZHF ] &
Bk WEBEEHERYRERENREIY
BLER AEBEHZEE  BEX
SEERRBERN  EAEEBAHLE
FERAEH (AU EENEREESKY
LMEY)  AEEHZEREBES -

R ETEAEHER - NEBZEE
BERREAREMT s AREERR
BNETAREAENE  REESA
ANBERBENTERBEENE - 5ERE
FERIRHE »

MEAREAREBUSIESE 2 BRERE
AR THEGS NRESENERLEE
AR -
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(@

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in
a loss of control represents the difference between (i) the fair
value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that subsidiary determined on the date
when control is lost; and (i) the carrying amount of the
Company’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus
any remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary and any
related accumulated amounts in other comprehensive
income.

All'intragroup transactions, balances, income and expenses
and profits and losses are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries
not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and consolidated statement of
changes in equity within equity. Non-controlling interests are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year between the
non-controlling shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed
to the owners of the Company.

EL BRI EEBRAT / 352020

4,

TEERBEK(E)
(@ HEEEE)

IMRHERBARGBREZHE - 2K
HEBEREUATRIENZE()EEREN
RFEMZHE D RRENEAERENR
FEMRREENEEAEE)  RiAR
Ao EZME A REEFERREENE
%M B A A A R R E AR B R ERR
Hib 2 E RN RET Z HAEE -

MESEEARRIERS &t WA R
SOA R E M R BRI T AR o REIRE
BT AMER - BRIFRR S REAERE
ERENEE - BRI RERYS
ERNE  URRETEAEERANS
B -

FEREEETIFERAMEEBRART
ZHB R R s - FERERARNGA M
MARRGEERBHR 2 Ea NIk
REABEEMEMEEEERA - FFER
BHEZJNAFNER N 2E K ERRE
ERBCREANRIER A ZHN DR

BN E 2Rz & EAKE D 3R B
RARB ZHEE AN RIFEBACR - AL
REGHOHERE R BAER -

ARERMELREAEERZE (LY
BURERHIRE) SRR S (B EEA A
NREERBEAEANGDETHNRS) A
R o B MOREEROE S M BRTE A A T LAGE
B ARBERKB AR ERED
FEVERR RS 2 B SR E AN ST IRK(E
AT EZ M ERER AR R ®
B WEHRBRARRHEBA -
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
loss, unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

(@

(b)

98

Foreign currency translation

(i)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values in
foreign currencies are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income. When a gain or loss
on a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or loss,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

4. FEEFEEE)
(@ HEEEE)
EARBWNFBHARRKRA - 5ME R B
REURARBEREBEIE  FRIFRE
DERFERE (FEADBARELED
HEEA) -

(b) FMEEBE
i) DEERZINEK
AEBEXBEENMBHRERAMEER
B OFAZESELENEBZLEER
BER([HEEEBHE - Ral
BwEABT((BRT) 2 BTR
RRABZHNER2INE -

i) EERBZUBBREXDHRGKAEEH

SN S £ HERES 12 5 B
EBATE R E AL - SN
AR A E S RE R E S
3 o B30T A s BSR4
HPHER -

BATVEERAINEHENIEEH
HENVREEQTEE RMEXFT
o

EFEKEANKREREEREME
T W s PR ARy - 2 MR SR IR O (]
R B N EAM 2 SRR o BIF
TR B R R SR IR E A TR
By w2z s s IR (AT RE S BB D 10
BENHER -
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)

(i)

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from
the Company’s presentation currency are translated
into the Company’s presentation currency as follows:

Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

Income and expenses for each statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the exchange rates
on the transaction dates); and

All resulting exchange differences are recognised
in the foreign currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign entities
and of borrowings are recognised in the foreign
currency translation reserve. When a foreign operation
is sold, such exchange differences are recognised in
the consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or
loss on disposal.

EL DM REERRAR / F352020

4,

TERHBE (8
(b) ShESI]RE ()
(i) FRAEAERE

PRI E A RR 25IEE TR
AT EAREEE T S EROEERM
BRRBIR T N RE RN A FH
28

- BUBHRERMIIEENEE
BRI BARREK B BRI
PRI

- BERHFEMEEREROK
AERRXHRTFHERRE
(BRIEZTHBLIEZHAH
MIBITEX ZFFENS RN
g B ER TR R X
BRSAMMEXBE) &
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BEREERER

REARE - HARSINEEIREF
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4.

100

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4.

()

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised in the profit or loss during the
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
at rates sufficient to write off their costs less their residual
values over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis.
The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as
follows:

FTEERBEK(E)

(c)

% - BERRE

WE - BB REEBIERRNBRTER
HEBEIR  WE BERRBHEBEZ
KAEREABEBRREZEEEZEE
RERGZERR R Z ETAEEE
TERA ©

EEHEERAENRREEFNEEERA
AEE - BB MKARRMA ST ER
HERAT @ ABERAEXRER R —
REVEE(WER) - A Ebge kR
BRANEEENHRERRNER -

M BE RRETE TR E BT A A
F Hidz 2 DA 3H EL AR AR R SR B E AV L R
NEHETE » st SR A 2 T2 F R0
=

Depreciation rate

wER
Furniture and fixtures R REE 20%
Biometric identification devices EYEEHEBIES 20%
Motor vehicles pai::! 30%
Computer equipment BINR 20%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The
gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in
profit or loss in the year in which the item is derecognised.

R EE AJEAFHRNETNERER
SHRETIR RMELRE(MER) -

WE - BERREER RN HER LR E
BEMBHEEETSELRREBNRER
RILTER - B EYE  BEIREME
2 W Sk E 1R R P IS SRR H RR EL 4R
WEERHEEZMOEZE INAHER
BIPER O FERBRARER
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired are measured on initial recognition
at cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be whether finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite
lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its
intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset,
how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and the ability
to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet
these criteria is expensed when incurred. With respect to
staff costs incurred directly attributable to solution service
income, it will be regarded as cost of sales and charged to
profit or loss of the Group accordingly.

Software development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-line
basis over the commercial lives of the underlying products
not exceeding five years, commencing from the date when
the software are put into commercial production.

ZEEMREBARRAF / F#2020
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TEERBEK(E)
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FHARNEBLEEBRRACRAEESF
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ERge A - IEAFHEROET
BEMBEFTHRBHETEANSMEHNR
at o

MEFERREMELNFAIRAGELE
EEEMBUR RN LR TR BT EE
AREMEE A& - ST H e EE L AEH
MAERE K 2 HE - B EWFEERK
mENzR  BRWERATKAEBELES
BN At H B RAREA A AERT -
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A EmMERXSEELRH - 38
RTERBEXREENEIRATS - £
R RHERE - WL AR EED

A -

BB AR AR AR EfRDRUE B R SIER -
WIABSEERBERTBEBELETR
FHORF (B EIRE R Ay -

101



Notes to the Financial Statements

PSR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

4.

102

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(€

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that
use.

The Group as lessee

Policy applicable from 1 April 2019

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-term
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets which, for the Group are primarily laptops
and office furniture. When the Group enters into a lease in
respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease
payments associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on a systematic
basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using the
effective interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

4,

FTEERBEK(E)

(e)

HE

REHNRBE  AEESFHZENRES
REEBHE - WANARBRMREMS T
B NIEHI B BB E EERER
AZaARBERE - WEPAEER
ERMNEENERREZERPESEX
MO LFEM e - ARG EDIRE -
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B 20194 4 B 1 B#iE B BE
REERBRBH  AEEERAEHELE
LMEERE  WHERA12EASRUATH
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ERTFRGIEERREEEEHELANL -
HZENAREAMMNBEEEMNEENR
RESEHNERFCEERRARY

HWHECERL  MHEEaENFIREE
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.

(€)

Leases (continued)

The Group as lessee (continued)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2019 (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised
is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability plus any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date, and any initial direct
costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-use
assets also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and
remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located, discounted to their
present value, less any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value
at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from a change in an index or
rate, or there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or there is a change arising from the
reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced
to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the
definition of investment properties and lease liabilities
separately in the consolidated statement of financial position.

ZEEMREBARRAF / F#2020
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4.

104

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(€

U]

Leases (continued)

The Group as lessee (continued)

Policy prior to 1 April 2019

In the comparative period, as a lessee the Group classified
leases as finance leases if the leases transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group. Leases
which did not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group were classified as operating
leases.

Where the Group had the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases were charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis
was more representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives received
were recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals
were charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they were incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out basis and
comprise all costs of purchase and, where applicable, cost of
conversion and other costs that have been incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale. When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any
write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses
of inventories are recognised in the profit or loss in the period
of write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of
any write-down of inventories recognised as an increment in
the amount of inventories and recognised in the profit or loss
in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when the Group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event
of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.
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4.

106

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in
their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending
on the classification of the financial assets.

Debt investments
Debt investments held by the Group are classified into one of
the following measurement categories:

— amortised cost, if the investment is held for the
collection of contractual cash flows which represent
solely payments of principal and interest. Interest
income from the investment is calculated using the
effective interest method.

—  Fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI”) — recycling, if the contractual cash flows
of the investment comprise solely payments of principal
and interest and the investment is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by both
the collection of contractual cash flows and sale.
Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the recognition in
profit or loss of expected credit losses (“‘ECL”), interest
income (calculated using the effective interest method)
and foreign exchange gains and losses. When the
investment is derecognised, the amount accumulated
in other comprehensive income is recycled from equity
to profit or loss.

—  Fair value through profit and loss (“FVTPL”) if the
investment does not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI (recycling).
Changes in the fair value of the investment (including
interest) are recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

U]

0

Financial assets (continued)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading purposes
and on initial recognition of the investment the Group makes
an election to designate the investment at FVTOCI (non-
recycling) such that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income. Such elections
are made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may
only be made if the investment meets the definition of equity
from the issuer’s perspective. Where such an election is
made, the amount accumulated in other comprehensive
income remains in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until
the investment is disposed of. At the time of disposal, the
amount accumulated in the fair value reserve (non-recycling)
is transferred to retained earnings. It is not recycled through
profit or loss. Dividends from an investment in equity
securities, irrespective of whether classified as at FVTPL or
FVTOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as other income.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to receive
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due. If
revenue has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less allowance for credit loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
the consolidated cash flow statement. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECL.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

V)

(m)

(n)

108

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any
contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected to be
entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third
parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales
taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Revenue from the sale of biometric identification devices,
security products and other accessories is recognised when
control of the goods has transferred, being when the goods
have been delivered to the buyer’s specific location (delivery).
Under the Group’s standard contract terms, customers are
entitled to a one-year free warranty. At the point of sale, a
contract liability and corresponding adjustment to revenue is
recognised, representing the unfulfilled performance
obligation of the warranty services. The contract liability
would be recognised as income on a straight-line basis over
the warranty period.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

()

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from provision of solution, installation and other
services are recognised when the relevant services are
rendered and delivered to customers.

Revenue from maintenance services are recognised on a
straight-basis over the term of the maintenance period.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method. For financial assets measured at amortised
cost or FVTOCI (recycling) that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount
of the asset. For credit impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the asset.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(i) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

(i) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the
dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment of
termination benefits.
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4.

110

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

(q)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by
applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that
asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the
borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the Group
that are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings
made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or
loss because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(q)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses or
unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

EL BRI EEBRAT / 352020

TEERBEK(E)

(q)

BiE (&)
BEBRATNEENBHREANEERBEZ
FRHESERABERBANFE 2 BERE
ZEE - RERBEE —RIZMEERT
EREZREIAR MEERBEEENE
FETEHARE SR A A R S T TR E
BER  ABAREBBERAHAHIER
PRERAR - WEREZHEDEABERE
REBTZERRTG N HEFHE M 22
Z(EBAFBRIIN Pz EMEENR BB
EE AT eHRAHEERAE -

RETBRR 2R E T EE 2 FERDIE R =
HRRBRELERBARE  EHRAEEE
BT EE 2 EE WRMZEREES
TEEA R RERERSID -

BEEBIAAE < REETDNSREHRE
TieE - YHEERHAE T AREERNZ
JERBURNAUBIFF B RALD B E -

BERBANRENRSHMREETHEEL
BUTZBRE RENEAREENEEL
HHRERZ HEFE - REFIEIIA 1R
s RER  MEMEESAEE 2 HA N E
At 22 TET 0 e 2R o B TR X e AR B
FEUBER T TERNEtEmRaREEzR
RS FER ©

BRERBEERAEZERBIZBRAE
ERHARRERRATROAREETELEER
BEZREERSHZHEER -

111



Notes to the Financial Statements

PSR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(q)

U]

Taxation (continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
separately. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to application of the
initial recognition exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Company or of a parent of the Company.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
( Related parties (continued)
(B)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Company are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
also related to the Group.

(v The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (A).

(vi) A person identified in (A)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(vii)  The entity, or any member of a group which it is
a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Company or to a parent of the
Company.
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4,

114

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

(t)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed at
each reporting date for indications of impairment and where
an asset is impaired, it is written down as an expense
through the consolidated statement of profit or loss to its
estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets. If this is the case,
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. Recoverable amount is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal
of the individual asset or the cash-generating unit.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of the asset/cash-generating unit. Present values are
computed using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset/cash-
generating unit whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units are allocated first
against the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst
the other assets of the cash-generating unit. Subsequent
increases in the recoverable amount caused by changes in
estimates are credited to profit or loss to the extent that they
reverse the impairment.

Impairment of financial assets
The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on trade
receivables. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of
the respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these financial assets are estimated
using a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time
value of money where appropriate.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk
on the financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to
12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort. Forward-looking information considered includes the
future prospects of the industries in which the Group’s
debtors operate, obtained from economic expert reports,
financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks
and other similar organisations, as well as consideration of
various external sources of actual and forecast economic
information that relate to the Company’s core operations.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t)

116

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

° significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 90 days past due,
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined to
have low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

(i) The financial instrument has a low risk of default,

(i)  The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term, and

(i) Adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash
flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit risk
when the asset has external credit rating of “investment
grade” in accordance with the globally understood definition
or if an external rating is not available, the asset has an
internal rating of “performing”. Performing means that the
counterparty has a strong financial position and there is no
past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t)

118

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of
default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable.

° when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

o information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90
days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

o a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

° the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the counterparty a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

° it is becoming probable that the counterparty will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

o The disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Werite-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
including when the debtor has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of
trade receivables, when the amounts are over two years past
due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off
may still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given default
is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information as described above. As for the exposure at
default, for financial assets, this is represented by the assets’
gross carrying amount at the reporting date; for financial
guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount
drawn down as at the reporting date, together with any
additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the future
by default date determined based on historical trend, the
Group’s understanding of the specific future financing needs
of the debtors, and other relevant forward-looking
information.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the original
effective interest rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t)

(u)

v)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the previous
reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date
that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the
Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to
12-month ECL at the current reporting date, except for
assets for which simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and are
reflected in the financial statements. Events after the reporting
period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements when material.
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5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors
have made the following judgements that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements (apart from those involving estimations, which are dealt
with below).

Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in note 4(t), ECL are measured as an allowance equal
to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or
stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition. HKFRS 9 does not
define what constitutes a significant increase in credit risk. In
assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly
increased the Group takes into account qualitative and quantitative
reasonable and supportable forward looking information.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are discussed below.
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5.

122

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(@

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets (other
than goodwill)

Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets are stated at costs less accumulated
depreciation and impairment, if any. In determining whether
an asset is impaired, the Group has to exercise judgment
and make estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an
event has occurred or any indicators that may affect the
asset value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of value in
use, the net present value of future cash flows which are
estimated based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3)
the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating
the recoverable amounts including cash flow projections and
an appropriate discount rate. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset
(including right-of-use assets), the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
assets belongs. Changing the assumptions and estimates,
including the discount rates or the growth rate in the cash
flow projections, could materially affect the net present value
used in the impairment test.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets as at 31 March 2020
were approximately HK$1,144,000, HK$1,399,000 and
HK$70,000 (2019: approximately HK$1,816,000, HK$Nil and
HK$119,000) respectively.
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5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(b)

(@)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in determining
the provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

During the year, income tax of approximately HK$402,000
(2019: approximately HK$259,000) was charged to profit or
loss based on the estimated assessable profits.

Allowance for inventories

Allowance for inventories is made based on the ageing,
change in the market conditions and estimated net realisable
value of inventories. The assessment of the allowance
amount involves judgement and estimates. Where the actual
outcome in future is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of inventories and
allowance charge/write-back in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.

During the year, allowance for inventories of approximately
HK$220,000 (2019: approximately HK$386,000) was
charged to profit or loss.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(d)  Impairment of trade receivables
The management of the Group estimates the amount of
impairment loss for ECL on trade receivables based on the
credit risk of trade receivables. The amount of the impairment
loss based on ECL model is measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition. Where the future
cash flows are less than expected, or being revised
downward due to changes in facts and circumstances, a
material impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 March 2020, the carrying amount of trade
receivables is approximately HK$8,333,000 (2019:
approximately HK$9,691,000), being net of allowance for
doubtful debts of approximately HK$340,000 (2019:
approximately HK$178,000).

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign
currency risk, credit risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk. The
Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(@) Foreign currency risk

The functional currency of the Group’s entities are principally
denominated in HK$, Renminbi (‘RMB”) and Macau Pataca
(“MOP”). The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency
risk as some of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of respective Group’s entities such as United States
dollars (“US$”) and RMB.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(@)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The directors of the Company is of the opinion that the HK$
is pegged against the US$ and MOP and the risk of
movements in exchange rates between HK$ and US$; and
HK$ and MOP to be insignificant. Accordingly, no sensitivity
analysis is performed on the movements in exchange rates
between HK$ and US$; and HK$ and MOP. Whilst, the
sensitivity analysis of the Group’s foreign currency risk
exposure in respect of RMB is set out below:

MEEREE ()

@ SRR (&)
AAREERR BB RRMEH
$ - WA ETT R TR PIH E %
SHEBEM - Et - TEEBITHET
R TTH RPIHE BV B R BB AT E 5
AT o IR - A% 5 B b A B 15 1 D 34 4 0
R GRE DT HIIAT -

Functional (Decrease)/

currency increase in

strengthened/ consolidated

(weakened) by loss after tax

hae gt BRBREE

& (B1E) B8 CRA) /%

HK$'000

FHAT

Year ended 31 March 2019 EHE2019F3 A31 BILFE 5%/(5%) 11/(11)Nete) (152)
Year ended 31 March 2020 HE2020F3 A3 HIEFE 5%/(5%) 20/(20)Nete) (iz)

Note: This is mainly a result of foreign exchange gain/(loss) on bank
deposits, trade and other receivables, trade and other
payables denominated in RMB.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency transactions,
assets and liabilities. The Group monitors its foreign currency
exposure closely and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

EL BRI EEBRAT / 352020

Biat T EZRRAAREIHENRITER
B 5 N HA YRR E 5 R AN
FOBFTEERE K e (i) -

AEBEBMEERINERS  BERAR
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HOMNERRR TR EHBERZREIPEKR
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6.

126

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its
obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit
risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables)
and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks
and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and
other financial instruments. The Company’s exposure to
credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents is limited
because the counterparties are banks and financial
institutions with high credit-rating assigned by international
credit-rating agencies, for which the Company considers to
have low credit risk.

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit
subject to the Group’s established policy, procedures and
control relating to customer credit risk management.
Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations
focus on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the customer operates.
Trade receivables are due within 30 to 90 days from the date
of billing. Debtors with balances that are more than 1 month
past due are requested to settle all outstanding balances
before any further credit is granted. Normally, the Group does
not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivable at
an amount equal to lifetime ECL, which is calculated using a
provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss
experience does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished
between the Group’s different customer bases.

6.

B EBREE ()

(b) FERE
EEER
EERBRERXZHEFREBITENEERT

ARBEFANEAETHE TS AEEM
BIEAMAR - N & BN EERBIRE &
2R (TEABFEWFR) MRE SR
AE - BRR\ITREMESBEEER S
ERXZREMSRTA - NEEAEHR
TERASHEBRELZEERREAR - RE
ERGHFRBREETRRETESE
ERROIRT R RS REEE IR
RIEERBAE -

B SR
BEEBBUEAKEREHENESLERER
BERMRE BFREERART 12
BEFPEERR -FEBHETEESED
BEPHEETENEENE - ZFThE
RREFBE DN R R 8 R IR A
RN XEREFPHAENEHUREPR
BEMELBRRENAEER - B REK
FIAMEE QYT 30 E0RNEIH 45
#HoBaf—EANR ENEBARBERE
REEFEBREDBEREIAEE - — &
& AEENEEREPIHERR -

AEBEZBERN2HBRHREEEENSHE
AEESNAMBEGIENEBERRE B
MeERABEEREE - AN AEEDN
BEEEFRERI BRI TIRES DM
MEBEREAFEERER - HAKE L E
E—FEOEARFPEZBZARNR
EEER IR -
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables (continued)

The following table provides information about the Group’s
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables as at

31 March 2020:

B EBREE ()
(b) FERE(E)
B SN TE (&)

TRIEENR2020F3 A1 HMNALEE S
BB EERBR LIBHEEEBEER

2020
2020
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHEEE IREAAE EBREE
% HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T THERT
Current (not past due) BNER (R HA) 0.9% 3,966 37
1-90 days past due #HI1E00H 1.0% 1,723 17
91-180 days past due #HI91 =180 H 1.4% 1,232 17
More than 180 days past due i HAE#E 180 A 15.4% 1,752 269
8,673 340
2019
2019
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEEAEIE R ARE A EEEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current (not past due) BNER (K@ ER) - 1,874 -
1-90 days past due ®EI1ZE90H - 4,305 -
91-180 days past due #H91 £ 180 A 0.4% 2,473 9
More than 180 days past due  #EHi#238180 H 13.9% 1,217 169
9,869 178
127
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6.

128

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

(c)

()

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

Movements in the loss allowance for trade receivables during
the year are as follows:

6.

B EBREE ()
(b) EERE(E)
B ST (&)

FREFREGABERFEZEHNT

2020 2019

2020 20194

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

At 1 April R4A1H 178 -
Impairment losses recognised for the year F RN#ERRE EIE 162 178
At 31 March K3 HA31H 340 178

Interest rate risk
The Group’s lease liabilities bear interests at fixed interest
rates and therefore are subject to fair value interest rate risks.

The Group’s exposure to interest-rate risk arises from its
bank deposits and borrowings. These bank deposits and
borrowings bear interests at floating rates varied with the
then prevailing market condition.

Except as stated above, the Group does not have other
significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities at the end of
reporting period, its income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest rates.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of each reporting period of the Group’s
financial liabilities, based on undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the reporting
date) and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay.

(c)

(d)

FREB
AR E T E B REE R R
HEATAENERR -

Syl

A BT R AR KA BRITERRE
o RS RITERRIE RER S BRI
REHFHFIES -

B bt B SN AR BN RE R & A
ERFREERARE HEARKERS
MEARR EFIAM SN RS -

AEENBRBEHERRERLBHNR
HESHE  UHBREEREAEMNEH
EEREHRSDHESHERLORSHE -

TREREEEBEERNSHERRY
BRTANIHABER  DERRBBRRES R
E(EREaOMNETH(WFE)RRERH
BIEAR RE B BN 50 RA K E A &
REERFEH -
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(d) Liquidity risk (continued)

PR B ()
d REBESEE ()

o

(€

U]

The maturity analysis of the Group’s financial liabilities based EREGORUBRETENAEEEHE
on contractual undiscounted cash flow is as follows: BEIBASWTT ¢
Less than Between Between
1year 1and2years 2 and>5 years
D1E 182F 2E5E
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FHET FET FHET
At 31 March 2020 202093 A31H
Trade payables B 5 ERRIE 898 = =
Other payables, deposits ~ E fth JE < 5518
received and accrued Bz S RER
expenses b= 2,921 - -
Lease liabilities HEBE 1,904 745 479
At 31 March 2019 %201953)? 31H
Trade payables E SRR 2,922 - -
Other payables, deposits ~ Hth & Hm
received and accrued Bz S KR
expenses & 2,975 - -
Categories of financial instruments at 31 March () M3AINBEMEFIEER
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHAT
Financial assets: SREE:
Financial assets at amortised costs REHEN AR SR EE 74,340 80,595
Financial liabilities: tEAasE:
Financial liabilities at amortised costs REHEKATIRNeREE 6,798 5,897
Fair values (f 2FE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and ARENTREERSBRBERREHME

financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement
of financial position approximate their respective fair values.

BERHR B AR AR / #2020

AR R R ERE(E R E & B E!’J A A

= oo
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has two reportable segments as follows:

—  Sales of biometrics identification devices, security products
and other accessories

—  Provision of auxiliary and other services includes (i)
maintenance, installation and solution services; and (ii)
software licencing.

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units that
offer different products and services. They are managed separately
because each business requires different technology and marketing
strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as
those described in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.
Segment profits or losses do not include other income, finance
costs, unallocated costs, which comprise selling and distribution
expenses, corporate administrative and other operating expenses,
and income tax expense.

130

7. oHER
AEMANTETSHI BT -

- BELEVEHEERNEE  RLEMNEM
ik

- REREREGRE  SREO#E TR
FRORTTZIRTE ¢ R (il) AFFFA] o

AEBN T 2D MBI RRETRERERBH
REEMEEBEM - RS EHERLTRIM L=
R - WE2WO A ERIERE -

KED T EHBR AR MWK M T4 Pt
EHER - DERRN S E RN BEEMWRA - B
A~ ROTERA (R BEHERDHAY - &
ETBRREMEZRIARAEHRFAS)
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. DEER(E)
Segment assets and liabilities are not presented in the consolidated DEEERBEREGEAMBREFEY - DA
financial statements as they are not regularly reviewed by the REWTERBNEEESZEMH -

Group’s directors.

(@) Operating segment of the Group (@) AEELEDI
Information about reportable segment profit or loss: BT E2RHIPIEFZOER -

Sales of
biometrics
identification
devices,
security
products Provision of
and other  auxiliary and

accessories other services Total
HELUEE
HAIEE -
REER RERER
REMERM4 HAb R BEt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FERT
Year ended 31 March 2020 BZE2020F3A31HILFE
Revenue from external customers & 5 7MERE P #y U 25 33,505 17,337 50,842
Segment profit S EBHF 16,276 8,302 24,578
Year ended 31 March 2019 BZE2019F3A31HLEE
Revenue from external customers 3 5 9MER& P B U 25 34,811 16,067 50,878
Segment profit pan:iviagl 16,080 9,744 25,824
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7.

132

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7.

(@

(b)

Operating segment of the Group (continued)
Reconciliations of reportable segment and profit or loss:

7 EER ()

(@)

FEBKED W (E)

QTR e Eal o

2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FET
Profit or loss: 8%
Total profit of reportable segments ] 2o 2EY Y F 4258 24,578 25,824
Other income Hiplg A 891 702
Selling and distribution costs SHE R SR AR (5,141) (5,749)
Corporate administrative and other REITER R E LR
operating expenses (23,095) (21,976)
Finance costs B AR (209) (@8)
Income tax expense ERESHEER (402) (259)
Consolidated loss for the year FRLRAEE (3,378) (1,486)
Geographical information (b) EEH

Information about the Group’s non-current assets based on
the geographical location is presented as follows:

BRAREEZMEBRAE ZIFRDEE

EHSTIMT

2020 2019

2020 20194F

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FAET

Hong Kong B 2,443 1,682

PRC Fh 170 253

Consolidated total RAEBE 2,613 1,935
Non-current assets include property, plant and equipment, 3EREEEBITYME - BE LERE  CHEESEU R E

right-of-use assets and intangible assets. TLAE -
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. HERE)

(b) Geographical information (continued) (b)
Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers presented based on the geographical location
where the Group operates is as follows:

HEER (F)
FHASERELEMEMELE 2 RAH
MBELPUWRNEHZFIT

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTBxT FHET
Hong Kong B 41,164 38,432
PRC i 6,307 7,847
Macau P 3,371 4,599
Consolidated total R MEET 50,842 50,878
(¢) Information about major customers () BREEEFHER

During the year, no transaction with a single customer
amounts to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue (2019: Nil).
Accordingly, no major customer is presented.

FR TEEABE-FFETHARZEASE
B UL 25 10% 3 A (20194 « =) - At -
WEZINEBEF o

8. REVENUE 8. Wz
Revenue represents the invoiced values of goods sold and service W tE P& o R RS SRR E R AT 1%
rendered, after allowances for returns and discounts. An analysis of HEEE - AEEFARENITOT

the Group’s revenue for the year is as follows:

2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT FHET
Sales of biometrics identification devices, HELEYEHHENEE  REERK
security products and other accessories H{th B 5 33,505 34,811
Provision of auxiliary and other services RHAEE RE MRS 17,337 16,067
50,842 50,878
7R M AR A F] / 4 42020 133



Notes to the Financial Statements

PSR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE2020F3A31 HIEFE

8. REVENUE (continued) 8. Uk (4#)
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
Revenue from contracts with customers FEBERELEDEISEHERN
within the scope of HKFRS 15 BEFEHNE FET FHIT
Recognised at a point in time AR — 2R 37,762 36,478
Recognised over time BERS R RER 13,080 14,400
50,842 50,878
9. OTHER INCOME 9. HulgA
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT FHIT
Interest income FEWA 811 636
Gain on disposals of property, HEWE - BE RE&ERE
plant and equipment - 29
Others Eh 80 37
891 702
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. MR
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHIL
Interests on: LATIEB A F &8
— import/export loans — i /HOER 16 28
Effective interest expenses on lease liabilities FAE&ENEEHERS 193 -
209 28
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11.

LOSS BEFORE TAX 11. BRBAIEE
The Group’s loss before tax is stated after charging/(crediting) the REBMOBGRT ATEE MG, (GFA) LTS E
following: &38R
2020 2019
2020 20194
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5t FExT FET
Amortisation of intangible assets m AR (W 19)
(note 19) 49 49
Depreciation e
— Owned assets (note 17) —BBEEWFZ17) 742 957
— Right-of-use assets (note 18) — EREEE (HE18) 1,611 -
Staff costs (including directors’ ETRA(BIEESRHE)
emoluments) (@)
— Salaries, bonus, allowances and — e TE4L - EBE N EAM
other benefits in kind = EES (b) 23,092 21,014
— Commission — B 341 673
— Retirement benefits — RIKEFETEIHER
scheme contributions 1,192 1,165
24,625 22,852
Write off of property, plant and MEEME - BB MR
equipment = 1
Gain on disposals of property, HEWE - BB RRERES
plant and equipment - (29
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERA 16,713 17,815
Foreign exchange losses, net B 31 E5 180548 26 252
Operating lease charges in respect of ¥ ¥ M REEAE L H
premises (b) 108 2,002
Auditors’ remuneration ZEETIN & 503 504
Impairment loss of trade receivables B 5 EWEERAERR 162 178
Allowance for inventories FEEE 220 386
Notes: e :

(@) Included in staff cost of approximately HK$5,064,000 for the year
ended 31 March 2020 (2019: approximately HK$5,409,000) is

included in cost of sales.

(b) Included in operating lease charges in respect of premises of HK$Nil
for the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: approximately
HK$498,000) is included in salaries, bonus, allowances and other

benefits in kind of staff costs.

EL BRI EEBRAT / 352020

@ HZE2020F3A31HILFE  EIRAMBELN
5,064,000 77T (2019 4F © 475,409,000 % 70 ) 7T A

SHEMA

(b) HZE2020F3A31 HILFE - MEZEEHES
T IT (20194 © £9498,00078 L) 5t AB TR
RS - (EAL - R REMEY TS -
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12.

136

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12, FIS®iMX
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BIEAR IR — HAENEH
Provision for the year FREE 390 390
Over-provision in prior years BEFEREARE = (77)
390 313
Macau Complementary Tax SEPIFTS AR
Provision for the year FREE 48 83
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBERE (36) (137)
12 (54)
Total tax charge for the year FRRGEABE 402 259

The Group is not subject to taxation in the Cayman Islands and the
British Virgin Islands.

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The
Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”) which
introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was
signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the
following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at
8.25% and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The
profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

Following the Bill enacted, one of the subsidiaries of the Company
is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax at the rate of 8.25% (2019:
8.25%) for the first HK$2 million of its estimated assessable profits
and at 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) on its estimated assessable profits
above HK$2 million. Other subsidiaries of the Company are
subjected to Hong Kong Profits Tax at the rate of 16.5% (2019:
16.5%) for the year ended 31 March 2020.

AEEBEGNFSHERRBRLESNHA -

MR2018F3A21 H + B AZRB2017FH
BUERD) (B75) GAIER([EAIER]) - A3
AMZRFFEHESE - KO ERMR 201843 A
28HEERBFETRERTIEER - RIEMARK
FIFEREHE  cEAREEREENE2EEE
TC s A 12 8.25% M B R EEL - B2 | B8
T B 1R 16.5% BI B K BEL o TRF & M A il
MEBMEHEERNEBERN NS ERR
16.5% 8 & — B R FMTIIE -

GO ERERIE - AARHEP— M BRE AR
HEHERFETIMN B2 E BB ITi%8.25% (20194 ¢
8.25%) B R MNEBFIIST - WtiB B2 B BB
TC R 5 FE SR B0 792 16.5% (2019 4F : 16.5%)
HIF RN E B RISH - BIE2020F3 A81 A1k
FE - RNRalEMmE A RZAEZ16.5% (20194 -
16.5%) KT RBME B TSR -

Prime Intelligence Solutions Group Limited / Annual Report 2020



Notes to the Financial Statements

P ISR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3 A31 BHIEFE

12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The Group’s subsidiary established and operated in the PRC is
subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax at the rate of 25% (2019:
25%) during the year. No PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been
provided as the Group’s PRC subsidiary did not generate any
assessable profits during the years ended 31 March 2020 and
2019.

The Group’s subsidiary established and operated in Macau is
subject to Macau Complementary Tax, under which taxable income
of up to MOP600,000 (2019: MOP600,000) is exempted from
taxation with taxable income beyond this amount to be taxed at the
rate of 12% (2019: 12%) for the years ended 31 March 2020 and
2019.

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the
product of loss before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong Profits Tax
rate of the Group is as follows:

12,

FriSBiBA % (48)

FR NEBAERBEKYLREEHHEARAER
TR 25% (20194 : 25%) B B 2 A5 BT ©
BMEGHREPBEAEMSEH - REDANEREHE
M B A Al B 2 2020 FF K. 20194F 3 A31 A IEF
EW M E A ERPUET -

RE BRI KA & TS A R AR
FTiS 7R - B 22020 K2019F3 A31H 1
FE - ERFUA SR 600,000 8P (20194
600,000 PIHE) BA 4N - R HH 2 & BB 00 FERR B
WAFZ 12% (2019 4F = 12%) KT RN TS -

PRS0 5 S ERRR 5 T IS 1R R IA RN S B B M IS B
RS BEMERNT

2020 2019

2020 F 20194

HK$’000 HK$’000

THExT FHT

Loss before tax BRELATE 1B (2,976) (1,227)
Tax at the domestic tax rate of 16.5% AR E16.5% (20194F : 16.5%)

(2019: 16.5%) SEmMBIE (491) (202)
Tax effect of income that is not taxable TREWABF B E (227) (201)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible &I = WFIS 2 1,188 925
Tax effect of temporary differences not AERE T =N E

recognised (105) 64
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not FABAERERUGBENRETE

previously recognised 7) (55)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERB B EENHRETE 301 -
Over-provision in prior years BEFERERE (36) (214)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries B AR TRMREAFE (56) @)
Tax effect of preferential tax rate EBEBMENRETE (165) (55)
Income tax expense for the year FERFAEHRAS 402 259
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 13. EEREEMS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (@) E=Me
The emoluments paid or payable in respect a person’s EREMRETARRRRENBARE
services as a director, whether of the Company, or its BrEEZ AT ZHEIT -

subsidiaries undertaking were as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE2020F3A31ALEE
Retirement
Other benefits
Salariesand  Discretionary benefits scheme
Fees allowances bonus inkind  contributions Total
BRI
[k FERER WA HtENRE HE 51 act
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TET TR TR THT
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Yuen Kwok Wai, Tony  FrElfgs%4
(‘Mr. Tony Yuen’) (REREE) - 1,608 256 658 18 2,540
Ms. Yuen Mei Ling, Pauline ~ Frx¥ %t
(‘Ms. Pauline Yuen’) ((hxxzt]) - 1,356 216 - 18 1,590
Ms. Sun Ngai Chu, Danielle  ##¥&+ - 480 76 - 18 574
Mr. Mui Pak Kuen (note ) BEREE () - 144 - - 2 146

Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. Yam Chiu Fan, Joseph ~ F#@%4E 240 - - - 9 249

Independent non-executive BuFHTES

directors
Mr. Hui Man Ho AXERE 120 - - - - 120
Mr. Chung Billy EERLE 120 - - - - 120
Mr. Poon Wai Hung, ERIERE (W)

Richard (note i) 10 - - - - 10

490 3,588 548 658 65 5,349
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 13. EEKEEMS (E)
(continued)
(@) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (@) ES=ENE (E)
For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ2019F3A31HLEEFE
Retirement
Other benefits
Salariesand  Discretionary benefits scheme
Fees allowances bonus inkind  contributions Total
BIRGER
g HeRkzh BBt EHEDE HESS Chy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fitn Fitn Fitn Tin ThT Fitn
Executive directors BiTES
Mr. Tony Yuen ey - 1,060 555 498 18 2,131
Ms. Pauline Yuen mERLLT - 1,080 454 - 18 1,502
Ms. Sun Ngai Chu, Danielle %33k &+ - 330 300 - 15 645
Non-executive director #7585
Mr. Yam Chiu Fan, Joseph ~ F#%4E 240 - - - 12 252
Independent non-executive B FH{TEE
directors
Mr. Hui Man Ho FERE 120 - - - - 120
Mr. Chung Billy BEELE 120 - - - - 120
Mr. Mui Pak Kuen BREEE 120 - - - - 120
600 2,420 1,309 498 63 4,890
Notes: et -
0] Redesignated as executive director from independent non- i) 20203 A2 BB EANITESFE
executive director on 2 March 2020 RWITES
(ii) Appointed on 2 March 2020 (i) 20203 A2 ARE(T
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or REE 2020 F & 2019F 3 A1 BILFE -
agreed to waive any emoluments during the years ended 31 WREENEXRERETAMSHILHE

March 2020 and 2019.
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 13. EEREESME ()
(continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) BUBRSHFMAL
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year HZE2020F3A31BILEE - AEBAM
ended 31 March 2020 included 2 (2019: 2) directors whose SEFMALTARIEIE2H (2019F 1 24)
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. B HleE L2500 R -
The emoluments of the remaining 3 (2019: 3) individuals are Her34 (20194  34) ATHIBNSEHI4n
set out below: N
2020 2019
2020 & 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Basic salaries and allowances EARF & RER 3,114 2,526
Performance bonus RIIELL 730 494
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 38 k& FI| 5+ £ 4 2% 54 51
3,898 3,071
The emoluments fell within the following band: B B A T E -

Number of individuals

AE

2020 2019

2020 & 20194

Nil to HK$1,000,000 % 1,000,000 77T 1 2

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 #7L% 1,500,000 4 7T 2 1

3 3

During the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, no #H £ 20204 K2019F3 31 H IEFE -
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors AEBBHERIMNESSEDHMA LTS
or the highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or HERBESEAMNBRMBERERERE

upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. Ehsk/E BBEELAE(E -
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BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(continued)

()

()

Senior management’s emoluments

Senior management represents the executive directors. The
emoluments paid or payable to senior management during
the years have been set out in the analysis presented above.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save for disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other significant transaction, arrangement and
contract in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company and the director’s connected party had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year of at any time during the year.

14. DIVIDENDS
No dividend had been paid or declared by the Company during the
year (2019: Nil).

[ELERERRBEAR AR / £32020

13.

14.

EEREEME (H)

() PREZEEME
ERERBEATEE - FAESNRER
SREEBNMSEHN X2

d) EBERRZ ZHAEHTNERES

Bira MBS IRAR M T 38 AT EE & Hh - i
RRBRNATEARREEREFHE
FEEREERNE RS A AR
SEXBEENEMEARS  RHEE
HINF R F AEAIRBIDIATAE

RE
AR FRE AL mE N R EE AR S (2019% -
7).
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

15. LOSS PER SHARE
(@) Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the

15. ERERE
(@) BRELRERE
FREREEERTHIEESE

following:
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Loss BB
Loss for the purpose of calculating TEEREARNBENEE
basic loss per share (3,378) (1,486)
2020 2019
2020 & 20194
’000 '000
FBR T
Number of shares ROBE
Weighted average number of ordinary FTESRREAREE R L B INE
shares for the purpose of calculating F9 8L
basic loss per share 800,000 800,000
(b) Diluted loss per share (b) BREEEE
No diluted loss per share are presented as the Company did A AR A B & 220204 & 2019 3 A 31
not have any dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding HIEFEWETMBITEINEEE S LA
during the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019. B% - i 2 5 R E A o
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BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

16. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme are calculated at 5%
(2019: 5%) of the salaries and wages subject to a monthly
maximum amount of HK$1,500 (2019: HK$1,500) per employee
and vest fully with employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

As stipulated under the relevant rules and regulations in the PRC,
the employees of a Group’s subsidiary established in the PRC is a
member of a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. This subsidiary is required to contribute
certain percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and wages to
the central pension scheme to fund the retirement benefits. The
local municipal government undertakes to assume the retirement
benefits obligations of all existing and future retired employees of
this subsidiary. The only obligation of this subsidiary with respect to
the central pension scheme is to meet the required contributions
under the scheme.

There was no forfeited contribution in respect of the defined
contribution plan available at 31 March 2020 and 2019.

EL DM REERRAR / F352020

16. ERIKFRIFHE

AEBERBEEBEHE LB BRI AT B
BEEREEEFEREIMEATESHE (BB
B AEEYHRBESHEZHRETFERITE
H15% (20194 : 5%) &t H - B REBEBAZS
% %8 £1,5007%8 JC (20194F : 1,500/ 7t ) K £ [A)
BESH BRI LEBNES -

REBERBARBRR AR - REBEPBEKIN
B /B8 X B B9 B 2 0 75 T BT E ARy P SRR IR
©EE - ZMBARARMTIERSHBIZES
EAFHELTEMNETAS BRI UBERAKE
PR E S o H77  BUF ARG AEZ M 8 2 ) A
BHRARARIERNBEMRARBHEL - M E
REF P IR RS BN B ERENF IR
TNHRRERIF o

72020 & J2 20194 3 A 31 H I & 7F 28 3R 5 2
B R W AT TR A -
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. 9% -  BERRKRHE

Furniture Biometrics
and identification Motor Computer
fixtures devices vehicles equipment Total
E9RE
GRREER HAHKE "E ERE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET FET FAT FAET
Cost B
At 1 April 2018 R2018564H1H 202 313 1,699 693 2,807
Additions NE 716 - 808 200 1,724
Disposals & - - (161) - (161)
Write off igc! (10) - - (12) (22)
Exchange realignment 0 5% 16 - - (1) 15
At 31 March 2019 and R2019F3A31 B
1 April 2019 20194 418 924 313 2,246 880 4,363
Additions whE 30 - - 62 92
Exchange realignment AR (30) - - (28) (58)
At 31 March 2020 M2020F3A31H 924 313 2,246 914 4,397
Accumulated depreciation Z:iHifE
At 1 April 2018 R20185F4 A 1R 144 313 801 513 1,771
Charge for the year FRZH 130 - 625 202 957
Disposals k= - - (161) - (161)
Write off HsH (10) - - (1 @1
Exchange realignment [E 3 s 2 - _ (1) 1
At 31 March 2019 and R2019F 3 A31 B
1 April 2019 20194 418 266 313 1,265 703 2,547
Charge for the year FRAZH 166 - 500 76 742
Exchange realignment EH AR 9) - - (27) (36)
At 31 March 2020 M2020F3A31H 423 313 1,765 752 3,253
Carrying amount REE
At 31 March 2020 M2020F3A31H 501 - 481 162 1,144
At 31 March 2019 R2019463 A 31 H 658 - 981 177 1,816
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18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18. FREEE
Leased
properties
HEYXE
HK$’000
FHERT
At 1 April 2019 #2019F4A1A 1,285
Additions wnE 1,725
Depreciation E (1,611)
At 31 March 2020 R2020F3A31H 1,399

Lease liabilities of approximately HK$2,979,000 are recognised with
related right-of-use assets of approximately HK$1,399,000 as at 31

2020F 3 A31 H - ERIEE B 42,979,000
ABITER AR EAEEEL 1,399,000 T - HE

March 2020. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants R TN RRE  EHBARENEELE
other than the security interests in the leased assets that are held FERERERRIN  HEEETSRIEEREA
by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for VEIE IR -
borrowing purposes.
2020
2020 £
HK$°000
FBT
Depreciation expenses on right-of-use assets EREEENERX 1,611
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEAENERX GTARERR)
(included in finance cost) 193

For both years, the Group leases office and staff quarters for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for an average term of
3 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a contract
and determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.

EL BRI EEBRAT / 352020

RMEFE  AEEEERACERBEIFEEHE
BZA - BOHARFHRIF - HEGRTIZES
HERER  Sa8BTEGRRRES - REEH
H R E A RE ARG RS - ASEEAEY
FIEELEEA NI RNITHRE -
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19.

20.

146

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. B EE
HK$’000
FTHET
Cost AR
At 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019, 1 April 2019 M20184H81H - 2019463 H31H -
and 31 March 2020 201954 A1HKR2020563A31H 1,850
Accumulated amortisation 25t
At 1 April 2018 M2018F 4 A1 H 1,682
Charge for the year FARAZH 49
At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 R20194F 3 A31HX2019F 4 A1 H 1,731
Charge for the year FRXH 49
At 31 March 2020 202053831 H 1,780
Carrying amount IREE
At 31 March 2020 R202053H31H 70

At 31 March 2019

Intangible assets represent internally generated capitalised software
development costs. Such intangible assets have definite useful life

R2019%F 3 A31H

119

BIVEERNSELE 2 ERMMERMFREERA - %
BVEAEAAERACAFHNTIZERENRSF

and are amortised on a straight-line basis over 5 years. NBESH o
INVENTORIES 20. =B
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Merchandises 20,943 21,393

At the end of reporting period, the Group’s inventories are stated at

cost less allowance for inventories.

During the year, allowance for inventories of approximately
HK$220,000 (2019: approximately HK$386,000) was charged to

profit or loss.

RREHR - AEBEFERRANRFEREIIE -

FRN - FEREEBH220,0008 T BEFENEG
(20194 : #9386,000787T) °
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0
0,

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. EZEWFE
2020 2019
2020 & 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
From third parties KEE=H 8,673 9,869
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B REREE (340) (178)
8,333 9,691

The Group’s trading terms with customers are mainly on credit. The
credit period granted to the customers generally range from 30 to
90 days. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly
by the directors.

An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables, net of

FEBEEPNEFRATIERRE - AEPE
HAOEEH RN FI0E0 A - AEEBELH
RIEE YR TRIRIES - BHEHAES

JERER

REBZER BB ENE SRR HIRRE

allowance for doubtful debts and based on the invoice date is as B WERERDITIT ¢
follows:
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
0-90 days 0ZE 90K 5,583 5,629
91-180 days 91 E 180K 1,269 2,091
181-365 days 181 £ 365K 637 1,709
Over 365 days 365 KA L 844 262
8,333 9,691
B2 DAl R EER AR / F152020 147



Notes to the Financial Statements

PSR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE2020F3A31 HIEFE

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 21. B SEWFIE(E)
As of 31 March 2020, trade receivables of approximately B ZE 202063 A31 H + B 5 FEWFRIEL) 4,404,000
HK$4,404,000 (2019: approximately HK$7,817,000) were past due 7T (20194 : 497,817,000/ 7T ) B 8 HAB RIB
but not impaired. These trade receivables related to customers for B ZEEZRBFUBEETEIHENCHENE
whom there was no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of FPEM - 258 ZEKFIE (kR REEE) K3
these trade receivables, net of allowance for doubtful debts and HHFTENRERSTET
based on due date, is as follows:
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAT
Within 90 days 90 KA 1,706 4,305
90-180 days 90E 180K 1,215 2,464
Over 180 days 180 A LAE 1,483 1,048
4,404 7,817
The Group does not charge interest or hold any collateral over 7R £ [F] 30 4 5 5% S 4 s UG BN R B Bk 4 A (Al K R
these balances. & e
The Group applied simplified approach to provide the ECL as AEBERGLEEEEYEREEDNE IS
prescribed by HKFRS 9. The impairment methodology is set out in HTEHRIBHEEESE - AT EIHNGEA T
notes 4(t) and 6(b) to the consolidated financial statements. M40 R 6(b) ©
As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group assesses 1’EZ%$%1%EJ§L|@%£§E@ — 2y - REBEIRE
the impairment for its customers based on different group of BA ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ@mg)ﬁgﬁyﬁgﬁﬁﬁ
customers which share common risk characteristics that are ﬁﬁqﬁwﬁ;ﬁgﬁ;ﬂﬂ WEER L T B B =R
representative of the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in BRREH - EBEEZER Bﬁgﬂfga’gaﬁ HNEEA B
accordance with the contractual terms. Details of the credit risk MK T 6(0) °
assessment are included in note 6(b) to the consolidated financial
statements.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables at the end REEEAR - NEEE S IR IE (B RER
of reporting period, net of allowance for doubtful debts, are ) WEREEN T EEEE -
denominated in the following currencies:
2020 2019
2020 & 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHAT
HKS$ AT 8,006 8,014
EUR BT 127
RMB AR 118 330
MOP SEPYEE 82 1,347
8,333 9,691
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22. OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND 22, HMEWFHER BANRERRS

DEPOSITS
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Deposits b 1,891 1,765
Prepayments TEfTFRIE 741 749
Value added tax receivables FE Y E R 172 158
Others HAh 35 34
2,839 2,706

P EEWARBESR(E o FFA LA AERRK S
BEYEY B HE R CHRN R FIAAR

Neither of the above assets is past due nor impaired. The financial
assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for
which there was no recent history of default.

23. BANK AND CASH BALANCES 23. B|ITRBESHE
At the end of reporting period, the bank and cash balances of the RMEER  AEENRITERRSERIELTIE
Group are denominated in the following currencies: BEtE -

2020 2019

2020 20194

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FHET

HK$S PSIT 62,544 67,329

RMB AR 638 1,636

MOP SR 515 627

Uss$ ETT 1,448 842

SGD T 2 -

65,147 70,334

15 A R B 8 0 2= SIS 7R 08 <7 o B SN B IR AR %
WIE - SEMNEEERTE AREAIEBRIRE
EITINEXBHRITELRKEMELE -

Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.
Exchange of RMB into other currencies is permitted through bank
authorised to conduct exchange business.
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24. TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables at the end of

reporting period, based on the invoice date is as follows:

24, ESEMAFE

RBERR REZAMAENAEREZEN

HRIBMERE DT -

2020 2019

2020 & 2019 4F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FE T FET

0-30 days 0E30KX 142 1,977
31-60 days 31E60K 708 939
Over 60 days 60 KA L 48 6
898 2,922

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables at the end of

reporting period are denominated in the following currencies:

RBERR > AEEB BN FENKREEAT

FIEHEETHE |

2020 2019

2020 20194

HK$’000 HK$'000

FE T FET

HK$ BT 211 1,827
RMB AR#E 9 54
USs$ ETT 659 934
EUR BT 19 107
898 2,922

25. OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND

ACCRUED EXPENSES

25, HMENFE BURIRERESER

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Deposits received from customers BWEFZRE 1,349 2,563
Accruals for operations LEEETE A 2,921 2,971
Others Efth - 4
4,270 5,538

1 50 Prime Intelligence Solutions Group Limited / Annual Report 2020




Notes to the Financial Statements

P ISR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE2020F3 A1 HIEFE

26. LEASE LIABILITIES 26. HEEE
Minimum Present value of
lease payments minimum lease payments
BEAENR BEAENREE
2020 2019 2020 2019
2020 F 20194 2020 F 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FET THER FHT
Within one year —FR 1,904 - 1,804 -
In the second to fifth years, BE_FRERF
inclusive (PIEERERF) 1,224 - 1,175 -
3,128 - 2,979 -
Less: Future finance charges W RRRE R (149) - N/AF3E R N/ATiE A
Present value of lease obligations &% %53 (E 2,979 - 2,979 -
Less: Amount due for settlement & : 7128 A R 5| ER(E 2
within 12 months (shown neBE(NRBEE
under current liabilities) B THIR) (1,175) -
Amount due for settlement after R 128 AE | EE BN S E
12 months 1,804 -

The carrying amounts of the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of

reporting period are denominated in the following currencies:

BB K - A BT £ A (AR DA T
A

2020 2019

2020 20194

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET TET

HKS$ HIT 1,422 -
RMB AR 1,557 -
2,979 -

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1
April 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to leases which were
previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. Further
details on the impact of the transition to HKFRS 16 are set out in
note 3.

EL BRI EEBRAT / 352020

AEBEACETBPHEIENERS NI HRE
ERIFE 165 - FAEN201964 A1 B4
EREAMBEESSHENE17HEH B AEEH
EMNHERERESE REZEENBRELE
A 165k MR EHIIRMIFES -
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27. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 27. BHEE
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FHIT
Contract liabilities BB E 5,604 5,168

The amounts represent the receipts from sales of maintenance and
warranty services exceed the revenue recognised on straight-line
basis over the respective terms of contract.

SRR ERRERBGHEE KA BBRBIZEREN
HREA K ERPT IR 2

SRR o

Movements in contract liabilities during the year are as follows: FANEHNEEEFHOT
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHT
Balance at 1 April N4 A1 HBR 5,168 6,317
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of HENmEREE GFAR4 188
recognising revenue during the year was EHERE) MERWEHNEERD
included in the contract liabilities as at 1 April (5,066) (6,183)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of billing BuERIERGIRAIH L B
in advance of maintenance/warranty services MEHME LB EEM 5,502 5,034
Balance at 31 March A3 A 31 BEEER 5,604 5,168

At the end of reporting period, contract liabilities were classified in
accordance with the expiry date of the maintenance and warranty
service contracts entered into.

R|ERR - EHNAETIRRARR] & MRE
RIS L ER B Em o -

2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHT

Analysed for reporting purpose: TERERZE 2D -
Current liabilities nREBAE 5,191 5,066
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 413 102
5,604 5,168
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HE2020F3 A1 HIEFE

28. BANK BORROWINGS

29.

2k

o

The Group had obtained banking facilities in respect of import/
export loans from a bank in Hong Kong. The bank borrowings
raised during the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2020 were fully
repaid as at the end of each reporting period.

JOP OO0l 0 Ll ° ' ©° ° L

28.

RITER
REBMBR—BHEBNBRTREARE HOE
HEHIRITRIE - Bl E 20194 % 20203 A31H
LHFEEMNEEBRITERCRSREHAREBEE
.

The bank borrowings of the Group are arranged at floating rates, REBORITEFIRZEETE  AMSAEER
thus exposing the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The average RIS REFERERE - NREBERHREHARNRIT
interest rate of the Group’s bank borrowings during the reporting (BB FHFIRNT ¢
period are as follows:
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Import/export loans #HOER 5% 5%
During the reporting periods, the Group’s import/export loans were RIREHIR - AEEHE EOERR—FRNE
due within one year and contain a repayment on demand clause. HEERDSRERERER -

The Group’s banking facilities are secured by:

(@  An unlimited guarantee issued by certain subsidiaries of the
Group for the Group’s banking facilities as at 31 March 2019
and 31 March 2020; and

(b)  Registered security over deposits of the Company and
certain subsidiaries of the Group to the extent of borrowing
drawdown by the Group as at 31 March 2019 and 31 March
2020.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had undrawn facilities amounted
to approximately HK$5,000,000 (2019: approximately
HK$5,000,000).

DEFERRED TAXATION

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses
of approximately HK$1,798,000 (2019: approximately HK$698,000)
that are available for offsetting against future taxable profits.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses due to unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in
unrecognised tax losses are losses approximately HK$1,798,000
(2019: approximately HK$698,000) that will expire in 5 years for
offsetting against future taxable profits.

BERHR B AR AR / #2020

29.

AEBERRITRE B TP S IHEIR -

(@ A2019%F3A31 HR2020%3A31H « A
EERNETHBERA AR AERERITRE %
KR ERBEER &

b)  A201943A31 AR202063 318 « &t
AABIRAEBAETHERFRAE
g - AREERINERAR -

M2020F3A31H  REBRRERHRBENA
5,000,000 7T (2019 £ : #75,000,000757T)

ELEN IR
RBEER ASEENKDABEBENLN A
1,798,000/ 7T (2019 4F : #7698,000/87T) + A A
EHRSHARRIER TR - MR FEIBL MERE
kmlﬁéfz Th E A 2R 2R i ) SRR B9 A 1] 78 A
o FFARIERBIIEE B R E1E 41,798,000 % 7T
(2019¢ : #9698,0007% 70) IR HF R EM - 7]
REEHERRERTRTF -
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30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. KA
Number
of shares Amount
RHEE ot |
000 HK$’000
T FAT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each HREEE0.01 B Th L @Ak
At 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019, M2018%4 A1H 201943 A31H »
1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020 2019 4 A1 H & 2020F3 A31H 5,000,000 50,000
Number
of shares Amount
ROHA &8
000 HK$’000
T FET
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each R EEO0.01 B Th I EAR
At 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019, R2018F4H1H 20193 A831H8 »
1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020 2019%F 4 A1 B KX2020F3 A31 H 800,000 8,000

AEBEREANBRAREAEEFELLN

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maximise
the return to the shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The capital structure of the Group comprises
all components of shareholders’ equity.

The Group reviews the capital structure frequently by considering
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. The Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs
as well as the issue of new debts, redemption of existing debts or
selling assets to reduce debts. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019.

The only externally imposed capital requirement for the Group is
that to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to have a
public float of at least 25% of the shares. The Group receives a
report from the share registrars weekly on substantial share
interests showing the non-public float and it demonstrates
continuing compliance with the 25% limit from the date of the
Listing. As of 31 March 2020, 41.75% (2019: 41.75%) of the
shares were in public hands.

154

Be ) KB BBIL B MRS R AR R k&
REFR - REBENERRERERRERNNE
HRTTE -

AEEBBREFRERKAREGEENEENR
B EREEAREE AEEEQBBRMK
B BITHREROBLEUARETHER B
BEEBEESIHEEENRLELSH A FEHEE
E& ANZRHE - P E = 20204F 201943 A31 H
IEFE  AABENEE - BERdUREBEEL
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE2020F3 A1 HIEFE

31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 31. XATHEFEMRRE
COMPANY
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FHIT
Non-current assets REBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R N RIE 36 -
Investments in subsidiaries RETBRARMIRE 22,558 22,558
22,594 22,558
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments B RIE 294 225
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEULH B A B FIE 2,559 1,864
Bank and cash balances RITRIREEH 43,838 50,439
46,691 52,528
Current liabilities REEE
Accrued expenses ezt E A 16 11
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN ENGIE e 3,411 3,731
3,427 3,742
Net current assets REEEFE 43,264 48,786
NET ASSETS EEFE 65,858 71,344
Capital and reserves BEXRR#HE
Share capital &N 8,000 8,000
Reserves H s 57,858 63,344
TOTAL EQUITY s 65,858 71,344

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 M202056F 6 A22 HECE S gt/ RIRETIE -

June 2020.

Yuen Kwok Wai, Tony
B Bl {2 e 4

Yuen Mei Ling, Pauline
S =g
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

32. RESERVES

156

(@

(b)

32. f#fE
Group (@) A&EH
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements therein rEERENSERATHNEHEREIE
are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss mEEMEERERLGEREREEERN
and other comprehensive income and consolidated 275 -
statement of changes in equity.
Company (b) AT
Share Contributed Accumulated
premium surplus losses Total
BRAEE MARE Z5tER @t
(note 32(c)(i)) (note 32(c)(v))
(HizE32(c)i) (Hf732(c) (v))
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TR TR
At 1 April 2018 ®n2018%4 518 51,682 22,458 (6,425) 67,715
Loss and total FAEEREARE
comprehensive income FEE
for the year - - (4,371) (4,371)
At 31 March 2019 and MR20194 3 A31H
1 April 2019 k20194 A1 H 51,682 22,458 (10,796) 63,344
Loss and total FRBEREZEBE
comprehensive income Faks]
for the year - - (5,486) (5,486)
At 31 March 2020 7A2020%3 8311 51,682 22,458 (16,282) 57,858

Prime Intelligence Solutions Group Limited / Annual Report 2020
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE2020F3A31 BIEFE

32. RESERVES (continued)
Nature and purpose of reserves

2k

o

()

()

(i)

(i)

()

(v)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company
are distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Share premium represents premium arising from the
issue of shares at a price in excess of their par value
per share and after deduction of capitalisation issue
and issuance costs of shares.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve represents the difference between the
aggregated amount of share capital, share premium
and capital reserve of subsidiaries comprising the
Group at the date on which Power Truth Holdings
Limited (“Power Truth”), the then holding company of
the subsidiaries comprising the Group, was acquired
by the Company, over the nominal value of 2,000
shares issued by the Company pursuant to the group
reorganisation on 10 November 2015.

Legal reserve

The Macau Commercial Code number 377 requires
that companies incorporated in Macau should set
aside a minimum of 25% of their respective profit after
income tax to the legal reserve until the balance of the
reserve reaches a level equivalent to 50% of their
capital.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in note 4(bj(iii) to
the consolidated financial statements.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus arose from the excess of the
consideration over the nominal value of the 1,000
shares issued by the Company pursuant to the group
reorganisation on 10 November 2015. The
consideration represented the net asset value of Power
Truth as at 30 September 2015.

EER B AR AT / #2020

32.

fi#ifs ()

(c)

RENTERRE

()

(i)

(i)

(i)

(V)

-*-b

B wE

BRERSESQRE  ARFRMDE
BEMNESAIHI IR TARARRE
HEREEZESIRREE AR  AQF
BEENTENBEEERBREPIEH
BT -

By ERASNERRDEENE
RBETRMDPAELRNRE - WO LN
BB BT RN EITHIRA

B OHAE
AHEBIEAEEETNERRNRA
“ﬂ%%ﬁEEmTWEAEWEﬁ

ARIBEIERAR AR ((HE])
;EZhK BADEE R EAEER
B HEAREIRE20154 11 A10H
5 [ 55 40 25 1T A9 2,000 AR A% 1 E (&
ZEREE -

JEERE

SEPIRAEE 377 AR E - FRPTRE
A R RIAR & BRRPISRE
M D 2s%BAEERE  EER
AR EBURE R A BN 50% H 7K

SMNE IR E
SN R E R IR R R BT INE TS B
BmEMEENAAEYZ5E - HiB
RBBER A B ISR I 5E 4(o)il) ATk A9
ST HRRE

A B
BARBELEARBHBEARRIRE
2015F 11 A10 B EEEAETH
1,000 A% B 1D (B 2 84 58 o RIBIE W
B 2015949 A30 HMEEFME -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHZE2020F3 A31 HIEFE

33.

158

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 18 January 2018, written resolution of the shareholders of the
Company was passed to conditionally approve and adopt a share
option scheme (“Share Option Scheme”) to recognise and
motivate the contributions that eligible participants have made or
may make to the Group.

The Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company on 18 January
2018 will remain in force for a period of ten years from its effective
date to 17 January 2028. Particulars of the Share Option Scheme
of the Company are set out in Appendix IV to the Company’s
prospectus dated 30 January 2018.

There was no share option has been granted by the Company
under the Share Option Scheme since its effective date and up to
the end of the reporting period.

33. BRETE
2018F 1 A18H ' ARNRIBREEMAZRE BB
LA R E IR EE IR AT 81 ([ IR FERT &)
IR RABAEERSEENNEEBEL A
BETE VAR ©

RAEIR2018 6 1 A 18 HERMMBEIRETSI B E
AR BEE2028F 1 A17 B+ FHE%EH
oo RARERETEMNFBEHNRAARBEA
20184 1 A 30 A & 4B R E 2 &Y -

BAMBAMEREEREMR  ARFAMERE
MR SR (T B AR
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3 A31 BHIEFE

34. SUBSIDIARIES 34. MEAHE
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 March 2020 are AARMEBA R R 2020%F 3 A 31 ARFIFH Y0
set out below: T
Place/date of
incorporation/ Registered and Percentage of
Name establishment paid up capital ownership interest Principal activities and place of operation
£B HMAYL/ Ryes/ A BEMRARRE FEEEZEI Y TEEBREEHY
Direct Indirect
B B
Power Truth British Virgin Islands 1,000 ordinary shares of 100% - Investment holding, Hong Kong
28 August 2014 US$1 each
B RERUEE 1,000 REREE 100% - REBRK BR
201458 H28H 1ETHEER
Prime Intelligence Management - Hong Kong, HK$100,000 100% - Inactive, Hong Kong
Company Limited 24 April 2018
EREREEARAF B 100,000/ 7 100% - EBEREE
201854 424 H
Solution Expert Technology Hong Kong HK$1,500,000 - 100% Sales of biometrics identification devices and
Limited 7 June 1999 security products; and provision of application
software, Hong Kong
ERREERAT i 1,500,0007%7C - 100% HEEMEHHMEERRTER
199956 A7H RiFERES - &%
Solution Expert Engineering Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100% Sales of biometrics identification devices and
Limited 9 April 2001 security products; and provision of system

installation, application software and repair
and maintenance services, Hong Kong

EANIRBRAT 0 10,0007 - 100% HEENFEBNRERRTZER  REEZES
200154 A9A 2k EARANRERREZRY T8
Solution Expert Technology Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100% Investment holding; sales of biometrics
(R&D) Limited 30 May 2003 identification devices and security products;
and provision of application software,
Hong Kong
EAMBHARERER LA £ 1,000,000/ T - 100% REER : HEEMFHEANRERRZER
200355 A30H RiRftERRE - BE
Solution Expert Technology Macau MOP25,000 - 100% Sales and provision of installation and
(Macau) Limited 13 September 2004 maintenance of security and information
technology system, Macau
EARBORM) BRAR AP 25,0002 % - 100% HERRHZE REAMBZRNTEREE -
2004F9F 138 2P
ERRRORNERAR PRC, Registered and - 100% Sales of biometrics identification devices; and
(“SE Shenzhen”) 22 October 2003 paid up capital of provision of application software and related
HK$10,000,000 after-sale services, PRC
EARRORINERAT HE Bift R RA - 100% HEAMFEBRAEE  REREREAZHR
(=R 200310228 10,000,000 REERRS &
Note: SE Shenzhen is a wholly-foreign owned enterprise established in the Bt - =R A—REPBEK T MINEBERE -
PRC.

FE 2R B SR AR A ) / 4482020 e
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35.

160

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

(@

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

The table set forth below is the detail changes in the Group’s
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash
flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement
of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

For the year ended 31 March 2020

35. MEBREHRERMTE
(a) BMEZHFELEBEZHE

TERBINAKERETIMELREZH
MEY BRASKIRSED - BER
PRELAZABNAREGARSRER
BREREBXARAKREREDBABMER
PrRBReRBzAE -

BE2020F3A31HLEFE

Impact on
Initial  Restated
Application  balances at New
1 April - of HKFRS 16 1 April lease Cash Interest  Exchange 31 March
2019 (note 3) 2019 arrangement flows charges  realignment 2020
BREREE
BBREEN  R2019%
0195 F1650FE 4R1ANEE 20208
4A1A (H3) gk WEERH BERE HSER Ej#R 3A31A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Thn T TEn Thzn Tén Thrn Tén
Lease iabilties (note 26) - 3,561 3,561 1,711 (2,297) 193 (189) 2,979
Bank horrowings (nofe 28) - - - - (16) 16 - -
- 3,561 3,561 1,711 2313 209 (189) 2,979
For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE2019F3A31HLEE
1 April Interest 31 March
2018 Cash flows charges 2019
20184 20194
4818 ReEne MEEH 3A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FHET FHET FAT
Bank borrowings (note 28) 247 f& 2k (K12t 28) - (28) 28 -

Prime Intelligence Solutions Group Limited / Annual Report 2020
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HZE2020F3 A31 BHIEFE

35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 35. mEBRERERMTE (&)
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Total cash outflow for leases (b) HERSRHERE
Amounts included in the cash flow statements for lease BIEEHSRERANEESEBIEUT
comprise the following: ®IA:
2020 2019
2020 20194F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Within operating cash flows KEREREN 193 2,002
Within financing cash flows MEBREREN 2,104 -
2,297 2,002
These amounts relate to the following: HIATNIBEHEBEEE
2020 2019
2020 20194F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FET
Lease rental paid EfHEEe 2,297 2,002
36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 36. BEREE
As of 31 March 2020 and 2019, the Group did not have any capital HZE2020F M 2019F 3 A31H - AL EILEA
commitments. o] & ZNHEHE o
37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 37. HAREE

Save for disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, the Group did not have any contingent liabilities at the
end of the reporting period (2019: Nil).

EL BRI EEBRAT / 352020

BRZEFEUBHMREAMEHMREELEIN - K%
ER R ERRL EEMEARE(2019F - F) -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE2020F3A31 HIEFE

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38.

Save for those transactions or balances of related parties disclosed

elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the Group had

the following material transactions with its related parties during the

year.

(@

(b)

162

Transactions with related parties

BBLRS
BEAMBRREMBHRED
HAEERIN -
/*\% °

(a) EREBIHNXZ

AEBERFARNEELR

Bk

g
—r
7

TR 5
BTHER

2020 2019
2020 20194
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Kt FET FHAT
Sales of goods to related companies: [ BEEA T8 EE D ¢
— Long Yield Company Limited —BRBERA G ([ER])
(“Long Yield”) (), (i) 140 102
— SoHo Business Center Limited — SoHo Business Center
(“SoHo”) Limited ([ SoHo ]) (i), (in 2 -
142 102
Services rendered to related ) EA A R AR
companies:
— Long Yield — [Ex (i), (ii) 109 99
— SoHo — SoHo (i), (i) 124 100
233 199
Rental expenses paid to a related B —EBEHMARMESAY
company
— Global Technology Corporation  — #EEEAR AR ([HEF])
Limited (“Global Technology”) (), (in) 858 690
Notes: Hiet -
i) The pricing of the related party transactions are mutually () BE X 52 EERASERBAEA RS
agreed by the Group and related companies. R#E °
(ii) Mr. Tony Yuen and Ms. Pauline Yuen are able to exercise (i) B B {2 % 4 R fu e 3% 2 ¥ & % - SoHo
significant influence over Long Yield, SoHo and Global REERERTES -
Technology.
Key Management Compensation (b) EESEEEHH

Key management mainly represents the Company’s

directors. Their remunerations have been disclosed in note

13(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

TEZEREIZRARNAES  HENH

e

AR A BTSRRI RE 13(a) A EE -
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HE2020F3 A1 HIEFE

39.

40.

41.

42.

LEASE COMMITMENTS
At 31 March 2019, the total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

39.

AEEIE
R2019F 3 A31 B ' REBET A HCEHERN
AR REAEREAENT

2019
20194
HK$’000
FHT

Within one year —FR

In the second to fifth years inclusive

For the year ended 31 March 2019, operating lease payments
represent rentals payable by the Group for certain of its offices and
staff quarters, and are negotiated for an average term of 3 years
and rentals are fixed over the lease terms and do not include
contingent rentals.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Epidemic of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (the “COVID-19 outbreak”)
since early 2020, the COVID-19 outbreak has spread across the
PRC and other countries and it has affected the business and
economic activities of the Group as well as the Group’s customers
and suppliers to some extent. The overall financial effect cannot be
reliably estimated as of the approval date of these consolidated
financial statements. The Group will closely monitor the
development of the COVID-19 outbreak and continue to evaluate
its impact on the business, the financial position and operating
results of the Group.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019 using the
modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, comparative
information is not restated. Further details of the changes in
accounting policies are disclosed in note 3.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 June 2020.

EL BRI EEBRAT / 352020

E_EERF(BEEARMF)

40.

41.

42,

1,930
2,601

4,531

HZE2019F3A31 B  KEAHENAEBEAEE
ETHAZEREBIGBSEMNES  HEFHHEE
A3F > HHANRSETBETeERAEE -

BREWMEREE

B 2020 F 15 % 2019 E A B 5 75 ([ COVID-19 &
51) » COVID-19RBERF B M EMBEARELE - M
AEBUARAEETP LEEENER KBS
PRI -FERETE - MUEZFHEEPBEHEK
AR R BRBYBTE - FEESTY
#4)T COVID-19 & 15 3 R A 4B AT (it EL Y AR S [ 3
% MBI REERENTE

LEBREF
REFR2019%54 A1 BRLEETEBERE
FEBIHREEAE 165 BB IFTE LB
BRTTE) - G BEEBBM0E — SHBERK
HESHE -

REM B R

FEMBEMREN2020F6 A2 BRESGIE
KRR
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Five Year Financial Summary

LFETBEBRE

Year ended/As at 31 March
HBZE3ANALEE R3A3ME

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
2020 20194 20184 20174 20164
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FET FHET FHT FAT
OPERATING RESULT ReExE
Revenue &S 50,842 50,878 71,063 63,522 59,065
Cost of sales and services rendered  $5& I B IR AR TS A A (26,264) (25,054) (29,016) (25,505) (23,377)
Gross profit ER 24,578 25,824 42,047 38,017 35,688
Other income HipgA 891 702 230 94 56
Selling and distribution costs SHE R HAKA (5,141) (5,749) (5,121) (4,826) (3,937)
Administrative and other expenses THEEMFASY (23,095) (21,976) (29,645) (16,715) (15,990)
Profit/(loss) from operation mERAN/(BR) (2,767) (1,199) 7,511 16,715 15,817
Finance costs B (209) (28) (75) (142) (1695)
Profit/(loss) before tax BREADER(F8) (2,976) (1,227) 7,436 16,428 15,652
Income tax expense EiEELiiba (402) (259) (3,222) (2,904) (2,603)
Profit/(loss) for the year EREF (FE) (3,378) (1,486) 4,214 13,524 13,049
Other comprehensive income FREMEEKE
for the year, net of tax: HNBRHE :
[tems that may be reclassified AREMHBEEEN
to profit or loss: HA ¢
Exchange differences on BEBINER 2
translating foreign operations E N =R (418) (273) 690 (400) (214)
Total comprehensive income ERREBA
for the year attributable to EEER
the owners of the Company 2HENEERE (3,796) (1,759) 4,904 13,124 12,835
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Total assets BEE 102,518 108,590 111,758 46,871 47,095
Total liabilities “eE (13,751) (13,695) (12,943) (12,642) (17,990)
Net assets EEFE 88,767 94,895 98,815 34,229 29,105
Equity attributable to owners ALATREEA
of the Company FEfhRES 88,767 94,895 98,815 34,229 29,105
1 64 Prime Intelligence Solutions Group Limited / Annual Report 2020
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